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Highlights
[0

e Turnover up by 8% to HK$418.2M
000008%0 004182000

e Gross profit up by 17% to HK$99.7M
O000017%00099.70 00

e Outstanding order book maintained at HK$174.4M
O000000000001744000

e Strong cash reserve for future growth opportunities

dogoooobobgdn

e Profit attributable to shareholders up by 30% to HK$21.9M
OO0O0dobDbhodsewtdd?2.otdd
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Chairman’s Statement

BV e

Despite the difficult economic climate, the Group continued steady 1 & H FiI &8 5 B b3 B W& > A< 4 B 475 &5

growth with turnover up by 8% to HK$418.2M and a net profit of 4 f%& & ¥§ Ji& » & JE 5 | Frson & 4 i ¥

HK$24.0M before tax, up by 41%. 418,200,0007C - BR B Hi Vi A3 fm419% 2 £
#%24,000,000 7T °

Some of the highlights from our Operating Divisions follow: T SCHR G A SR 2 A
Plumbing Fixtures RN

Our Plumbing business continued strong growth in 2008 driven 52 B/ [y b 7 25 15 B 38 fin - A< 4R [ 2 #4516
by increased activities in the Mainland. We opened a luxury B HZEHRN = FF )\ AF 4 4 5k 15 18 S 14
bathroom showroom in Shanghai in October and have already & o AXFEE A+ H 75 b B 3% — Jr = A i
seen encouraging results. We continue to achieve good results by — WS BRFI % > [ EA NELHE - Hils R HE
focusing on the retail and refurbishment markets in Hong Kong, @‘Fﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ%%ftﬁ%% 7 A v B
which are more stable in the current climate. A BT B A 4R T e A A A 1R AR -

External and internal scenes of our new Shanghai Showroom

i BB 2 ML TR B
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Chairman’s Statement
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Pattern floor at Mega Box shopping mall
Mega Boxi ) /10> 2 Hiy T ] 52

Tiles

Reasonable results were achieved by serving the renovation and
institutional markets in Hong Kong and we have expanded our
activities in the Mainland where we secured a number of prestigious

projects including the IFC in Shanghai.

Marble Export

Some growth and increased margins were achieved in 2008 by
focusing on value added products and production efficiencies. Our
customers went through a de-stocking process in the second half of

2008 but we believe that this process is now complete.

4 ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED % Fl ¥ Jit 45 B 2 w]

i

A S5 BTE 1) A o B 2 A 36T 45 B2 3t AR
B 07 T B AT PR SEAR - TS BL A0 R 1
B o Sl AE A IR L R o S
ZRERHEE -

Xamnn

A AR S TR AR PO R G
PETFAE RO (R R B R R
R o (A AR 2 R AE BT HEF
SRAR IR S A ARG AR
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Vanity top and bowl for export market
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Engineering
The division continues to focus on value added services in a
competitive market. We made some progress in 2008 and secured a

number of landmark projects including equipment for the Prince of
Wales Hospital.

Building Materials Export
Turnover in this small unit increased by some 30% in 2008 as we
concentrated on quality control and developing our product range

which we believe positions us for further growth.

Over the past few years we have diversified our activities and
expanded our coverage in Hong Kong, the Mainland and overseas.
Whilst the current economic environment has created additional
challenges, we are well positioned to “weather the storm”. We
continue to focus on service, quality and relationships with our key
customers which we believe will enable us to continue growth in the

difficult years ahead.

Michael John Green
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2009

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of Operations

The Group continued its focus on the higher added value
opportunities within the building materials and engineering
equipment fields and especially the retail of plumbing fixtures and

the manufacturing and export of building materials.

During the year the Group recorded a turnover of HK$418.2
million with a gross profit of HK$99.7 million (2007: HK$387.9
million and HK$85.3 million respectively). Gross profit margin
improved from 22.0% to 23.9% as a result of our focus on these
higher value added activities. Operating expenses increased to
HK$79.8 million (2007: HK$75.7 million) mainly due to an
increase in staff compensation and the additional expenses of
our new retail shop in Shanghai. As a result, the Group’s profit
attributable to shareholders for the year improved to HK$21.9
million (2007: HK$16.8 million).

We improved our market coverage with new products and a wider
customer base. Despite the recent economic crisis, outstanding
orders on hand remain stable at HK$174.4 million (At December
2007: HK$174.3 million) with gross margins rising slightly.

Segmental Information

Revenue from trading operations increased by HK$18.4 million to
HK$260.0 million with the gross profit contribution increasing by
HK$10.4 million to HK$50.2 million (2007: HK$241.6 million
and HK$39.8 million respectively). During the year, residential
property development in Hong Kong remained at a low level,
but we improved our results by expanding our product range and

through better market coverage in the Mainland.

Revenue from manufacturing and export increased from HK$78.3
million in 2007 to HK$84.7 million in 2008. We expect
opportunities to improve as our overseas customers complete their
de-stocking process and we expand our product ranges to increase

market share.

6 ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED % i #% Jit 45 I 2 )

05 [

7S S [ A A S R R S R e TR A
DI I E R U R IR AR
DA R SR b R A Rt e

N K EHE R E EEHLOBK
418,200,000 M 4 i 1| £ #5 #:99,700,000
T (ZFFELE G R
387,900,0007C J % %585,300,0007T ) °
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I > % BB R % 1122.0%42 T+ £23.9% -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year the renovation market in Hong Kong slowed down
but we still maintained some growth through our retail outlets and
dealer sales. Turnover increased by 8.1% from HK$68.0 million in
2007 to HK$73.5 million in 2008 and gross profit increased from
HKS$22.3 million in 2007 to HK$24.8 million.

Disposal of an associate

On 11 January 2008, the Group disposed of its entire interest in the
capital of Kingspan China Limited (“KCL”), an associate company
in which the Group had a 20% equity interest, whereby the Group
transferred its entire interest represented by 2,000 ordinary shares in
KCL to Kingspan Holdings (Insulation) Limited (formerly known
as Kooltherm Holdings Limited). No gain or loss arose in this
disposal and, upon completion, KCL is no longer an associate of the

Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure and Financial Hedging

The Group manages its risk exposure to foreign currency
fluctuations and forward exchange contracts have been arranged
with the Group’s principal bankers to mitigate exchange risks.
Further information on the forward exchange contracts is disclosed

in the notes to the financial statements.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained a healthy balance sheet with no bank
borrowing and zero gearing as at year end (At 31 December
2007: Nil). The Group remained conservative in working capital
management, and generated a positive cash flow of HK$15.7
million (At 31 December 2007: HK$12.0 million) from operating
activities with cash balances of HK$77.1 million as at year end
(At 31 December 2007: HK$74.5 million). Most of the Group’s
cash balances are placed in time deposits with reputable financial
institutions. We will continue to manage our cash flow cautiously
and expect to meet our future financial requirements by internal

resources and bank credit facilities.

B PE I o B0 A

N FE BTG AL
EMEEMT LA HRE—EME-
R T E LAEAHE68,000,0007C
ETF8 1% E —FE \AELHEH73,500,000
JG o 1 A e R R B T AR A
22,300,000 70 34 il 2 £ 5 %524,800,000
TE e

B8 A

NZEFENFE—H+—H > AEEDEHR
T B A PR A (TR AR ) (A
£ 15 A 2008 HE I 45 09 8 A R IR
A Hp 0 A EORE A (R T A A A
2,000/ ) T Kingspan Holdings (Insulation)
Limited (H#§ £ Kooltherm Holdings
Limited ) o /& ¥ i 8 f7 8 Sk A5 AT 10 282 05 >
77 5€ A% » 18] il [ AS i 2% A 5 1 A

BT

A B WA, Bk B Sk 75 S
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Management Discussion and Analysis
0 LA AT

Contingent Liabilities

Certain subsidiaries have given undertakings to the banks that
they will perform certain contractual financial obligations to third
parties. In return, the banks have provided performance bonds and
letters of guarantee to third parties on behalf of these subsidiaries.
As at 31 December 2008, the amount of guarantees outstanding was
HK$4.5 million (At 31 December 2007: HK$3.0 million).

Banking facilities with assets pledged
A property with net book value of HK$49.0 million at year end
held by a subsidiary of the Group is pledged to a bank to obtain

banking facilities.

Employees

At the end of 2008, the Group had approximately 430 employees
in the Mainland and approximately 137 employees in Hong
Kong and Macau. The Group continues to provide remuneration
packages and training programmes to employees with reference to
prevailing market practices. Under the existing share option scheme
of the Group, subject to compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Directors were
authorised to grant share options to eligible persons as incentives.
Details of share options granted are disclosed in the Directors’

Report annexed to the 2008 annual report.

Outlook

The Group achieved reasonable growth in 2008 and will continue
to focus on improving customer service and market coverage. The
global financial crises will make the coming year an extremely
challenging one, but with the support of our well experienced
management team, and a clear focus, we remain conservatively

optimistic for 2009.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Corporate Information
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MICHAEL JOHN GREEN, aged 69, is the Chairman of the Group. Mr Green obtained
a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from McGill University in Canada in 1962
and is a member of various engineering institutions and associations. He is responsible for
the strategic planning and overall management of the Group. Mr Green joined the Group
in 1962.

Kwi e B BLAF6ost > AL ER - B AER — LS ZFRERIMEKR
McGill University » BASEW TR B A2 LIEmEe Ringned-
B FEAE ] 2 R W B S A o AR A — LS I A AR E -

' r
.
—

&

£

DANIEL GEORGE GREEN, aged 35, an executive director and the Managing Director
of the Group. After gaining his degree in Manufacturing Systems Engineering at the
University of Pennsylvania, Mr Green worked in New York as a strategy consultant for
Andersen Consulting (now Accenture), and as an equity analyst for Sofaer Capital’s
Global Hedge Fund. Mr Green joined the Group in 2002 and is the son of the

Chairman.

FHIE o BBk - BUAE3SH - A S M 2 AT # S AT R AR AR AE R E S L
JE BH R BRI G S0k R AT TR B4R AR AR A0 % RS R m) (BRI AR ) AR OR
W Ji ] > I B A Sofaer Capital’s Global Hedge Fund{T Bk 75 43 # B o & R e A2 A —
TERTAEMARER HIEBRERZ T
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LAI KA TAK, PATRICK, aged 44, is the Finance Director of the Group. Mr Lai
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and the University of Warwick with a
professional diploma in management accountancy and a master’s degree in business
administration. He is an associate member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Before joining the Group, he was with the Astron Group Ltd., a subsidiary of Flextronics

Group, for 3 years as Chief Financial Officer. Mr Lai joined the Group in November
1998.

RED > BUF 4450 152 5 B W05 38 55 o B0 A 5 36 7 75 ik B T B2 B K% University
of Warwick > 73 Fll 44 457 35 & 51 2 3 SCIR I U7 5 SRR SR A6 o B 2% 0 R e B A B
GEtii g X EBGFIA G2 g8 B ETEMAA L Z A7 - AL BB R E T
LA PR m) (80 0 4 T B RS 20 \)) 2 e A B 165 8 B 34F o B — TN +—
AMAALL N -

SIMON MURRAY, CBE, aged 69, has been an independent non-executive director of
the Company since September 2004 and was a non-executive director of the Company
from 2002 until 2004. He is the Chairman of General Enterprise Management Services
(International) Limited (GEMS Ltd), a private equity fund management company.
He is also a director of a number of public listed companies including Cheung Kong
(Holdings) Limited, Orient Overseas (International) Limited and USI Holdings Ltd.

At the same time, he is a director of Compagnie Financi¢re Richemont SA, Sino-Forest

Corporation and Vodafone Group Plc, all being listed companies overseas.

MR cpe > BUF6 > A —F LWL AN A ML FPATHSE —FF
FRECEFNFEMBARNFAFUTEE - WAL ABERESEHARAEERE
EHARARKER - FAZHEBLTAFA SR G RILEZE (L) AR
O] SROT A (BB A BR 2 7] K B B B BR 2> =] o [R] 5 > {8 R £ Compagnie
Finanaere Richemont SA, Sino-Forest Corporation }¢ Vodafone Group PIc% iff b b 1 24
Al ZEH o
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CHRISTOPHER JOHN DAVID CLARKE, aged 59, has been a non-executive director
of the Company since September 2004 and was an independent non-executive director
from 2002 until 2004. He also serves on the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr Clarke is the Managing Partner of DLA Piper Hong
Kong, the Hong Kong office of a leading international law firm. He has over 35 years
of experience as a solicitor in England and Hong Kong with extensive experience in

commercial litigation and corporate and commercial law and regulation.

33 > BlAESopt > H —F X NERCHEMEALFFITER R -FX 5
CEFEWNAEI A A N A BT E S PN AR R ES T B G LM
BB o il 2 3 S A T PR A R B AT A WS R AT A SR L B .
BT S 1 e 7 i AT AL SE A BRI 3 44F » % 7R SE W A ~ 4 ) B T S A Bk J D5 T

CE-A-EY T

AUGUSTUS RALPH MARSHALL, aged 57, is an Associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a Member of the Malaysian Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and has more than 30 years experience in financial and
general management. He was appointed to the board of Arnhold Holdings Limited as
an Executive Director in May 2000 and since February 2002, he has been serving as a
Non-Executive Director. He is an Executive Director of Usaha Tegas Sdn Bhd (“UT”)

and serves on the boards of several others companies in which UT has significant

interests viz. Astro All Asia Networks plc (listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

“Bursa Securities”) of which he is also the Executive Deputy Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer, Tanjong Public Limited Company (listed on the Bursa Securities and
also on the London Stock Exchange plc) of which he is also the Executive Director,
Overseas Union Enterprise Limited (listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited), Johnston Press plc (listed on the London Stock Exchange plc) and Maxis
Communications Berhad. He is also a director in an independent non-executive capacity
in KLCC Property Holdings Berhad and in a non-independent non-executive capacity in

MEASAT Global Berhad, both listed on the Bursa Securities.

AUGUSTUS RALPH MARSHALL > BUAE575% » T B B sl mg i b g st il &
B K 56 A€ 7Y 55w M A e B o R B B L E 308 4F o S R — &
TERENLHERESAERMZATES W —FT FE B FITHES -
1B 75 £ Usaha Tegas Sdn Bhd ([UT |) Z 478 Ff AEZ M UTHE A = KR 2 A
A # o A AT Astro All Asia Networks ple (A AR PH R #5528 5 B Eifi) (15§
T 1) Z AT R RS S AR B AT BLAR 4K > Tanjong Public Limited Company (A F§ 28
Jit B A #0d% 75 28 o B B 2 W) EAE AT E F > Lh K Overseas Union Enterprise Ltd
(A B N3 75 75 28 5 Bt E17) ~ Johnston Press ple (A #7258 5 r i~ d@l) K&
Maxis Communications Berhad ° 7} £ KLCC Property Holdings Berhad 2 % 7. IF i
173 95 S MEASAT Global BerhadZ F AT HE F (M EH A HE LT EHAH) -
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LIM GHEE KEONG, age 41, was appointed as an alternate director of Mr Augustus
Ralph Marshall in September 2006. Mr Lim graduated with a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Distinction), majoring in Finance from the University of Hawaii at
Manoa. He is the Group Treasurer of Malaysian based Usaha Tegas Sdn. Bhd., which has
significant investments in telecommunications, media, power, energy, marine logistics,

gaming, real estate and other sectors. Prior to joining Usaha Tegas, he held various

credit and treasury positions in General Electric Capital Corporation in the USA and in

a local bank in Malaysia. He has more than 18 years’ experience in treasury and credit

management. His other directorships include Paxys Inc., a business process outsourcing
company (listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and Overseas Union Enterprise Ltd.,
which is involved in hotel operation and investment holding (listed on the Singapore

Exchange Securities Trading Limited).

SO B4 > R = F TN U AT 5 Augustus Ralph Marshall 5642 2 8
AUHE o o ARG A 52 36 7 Manoa B U R R B » 3l B A 48 B s < T A8 BB - 2
B (— &%) o B B2 55 J§ 2K VG 8F Usaha Tegas Sdn. Bhd. 1) 45 [#] 7] & » 3% 4 2E it & Al ~
EHS ~ 7 BB R - U TR - b S OH A 8 RS 2 B K o N A Usaha
Tegas % [ LLH » 1% % J#» 35 B General Electric Capital Corporation 5 f& 3 P4 i [ 2% Hb,
SRATYEAE A5 R A5 8 S BB W5 > 1800 BB K A B4 L A A R 1 8 4F R B« MRS A
F1%) JFE Al 3 S MBS 45 JF A R 9R A B T b i Y 7 S8 AP A W] Paxys Inc. 0 BL K
BT I A A R R e RS 7 B N % 8 %5 58 5 BT B T ) Overseas Union Enterprise
Lid. °

OWEN MARK LEWELLIN RHYS, aged 67, was appointed as independent non-
executive director in February 2009. He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of England & Wales and a former fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Bankers in London. He retired in 2003 as Executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer of The HongKong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited. Mr Rhys’ career in Hong Kong
commenced with KPMG Peat Marwick (formerly known as Peat, Marwick, Mitchell
& Co.), followed by Moller’s Limited, HSBC and latterly with China Light & Power
Company, Limited.

Wi BLAFEGTIE > I R B UAE M RAT By AR A RV L IR HUAT E o IR B
W EBRE T EA AT SR RMIRITEGZMERT R - R =%
F=ARRAR A BRI S A PR R 2 AT 3 3 R B MR 38 2 IS o 2R e A R
B G ES T (A REMEE AR REEFBZHEE 2Bl ZH
A Moller’s Limited ~ JE ' $R 17 & #E 1A RA A »
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THADDEUS THOMAS BECZAK, aged 58, is an independent non-executive director

_‘h of the Company since 2004. He also serves on the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr Beczak is currently the Chairman of Cowen Latitude

.. Advisors Limited and Vice Chairman of Cowen and Company, LLC. He is also the non-
e executive Chairman of ACR Capital Holdings Pte. Ltd, an Asian reinsurance company;

non-executive chairman of Artisan Du Luxe Holdings Limited and an independent
non-executive director of LIM Asia Alternative Real Estate Fund. Mr Beczak is also an
independent non executive director of a number of listed companies, including Phoenix
Satellite Television Holdings Limited, Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing Corp
Limited , Nam Tai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited and Pacific Online Limited.

From April 2005 to March 2008, Mr Beczak was a senior advisor to Nomura
International (Hong Kong) Limited and non-executive chairman of Nomura Asia
Holding N.V. From November 1997 until December 2002, Mr Beczak was Chairman of
the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and a member of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange Board of Directors from 1998 until 2001. From June 2001 until
May 2007, he was a member of the Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures
Commission in Hong Kong. Currently, he is also a member of the Advisory Committee
of the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC).

From September 1997 until December 2003, Mr Beczak was a Director of Kerry
Holdings Limited. During this time he also held various Board and operating positions
within the group, including Deputy Chairman of SCMP Holdings Limited and Publisher
of South China Morning Post Publishers Limited, Deputy Chairman of Shangri-La Asia
Limited, Deputy Chairman of Kuok Philippines Properties, a Director of China World
Trade Center Limited and a Director of Kerry Properties Limited.

Prior to joining the Kerry Group, Mr Beczak was a Managing Director of J.P. Morgan
Inc., and President of J.P. Morgan Securities Asia from 1990 until 1997. While at J.D.
Morgan, Hong Kong, he was a Director of the Bank of the Philippine Islands and a
Committee Member of the Hong Kong Association of Banks. Mr Beczak has over 20
years of experiences in Asia.

Mr Beczak is a graduate of Georgetown University (B.S.ES.), and Columbia University
(M.B.A). He is a member of the Board of Advisors of the School of Foreign Service at
Georgetown.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting the annual report together
with the audited financial statements of Arnhold Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

shown in note 19 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the financial

statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to
the Group’s major customers and suppliers during the financial year

are as follows:

Report of the Directors
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LMBEBRARAF ([AXF]) EHGE
B2 7 R N AR AR DL A E)
W AR (SR [ALE]) WE_FTN
FHA=Z+—HILEEZREZLES
WA B k> AT A 5E

=395 8 N Ty )

Ay ) B I BRI - 45 T E Y
J& O3 W) 2 B I A A B O B
B R B E19 -

A AR T i SE TS Kol oy HE 2 AR T SRR R
B A 2 3 A O B 5 R R T RES

ERE P KR
AL AN 2 EEEF KA LA 4
BEZHBERBEREZ AT

Percentage of
the Group’s total

MiARBEHBBEE IR
Sales Purchases
#i’] [l 55
The largest customer wREFP 9.1%
Five largest customers in aggregate K HMEF &5 25.7%
The largest supplier e KAt FE P 19.2%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate B K AR I RS A R 45.3%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had

an interest in these major customers or suppliers.

AN F B BN A ST A R
(FREH B AARLARA T2 T
B DL ) o S 7 A AF BE AT AT IR ] B A
e T B A A A R i
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Report of the Directors
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Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are

set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page 41.

The board of directors of the Company did not recommend the
payment of any interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June
2008.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HKS$5.5 cents per ordinary share, totalling
HK$12,391,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007:
final dividend of HK$4.4 cents per ordinary share, totalling
HK$9,913,000) subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the 2009 AGM. If approved, the final dividend will
be paid on or about 21 May 2009.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company

during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Charitable Donations
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to

HK$64,000 (2007: HK$37,500).

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the

Group are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Principal Properties
Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes are

set out on page 140.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set

out in note 28 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2008,
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$89,188,000 (2007: HK$86,501,000).
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Five-year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 139.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2008 are set out in note 11 to the

financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year
ended 31 December 2008. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares

during the year.

Pre-emptive Rights
No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda in relation

to issue of new shares by the Company.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

the Report are:

Executive directors:
Michael John Green
(also appointed as alternate director to Simon Murray)
Daniel George Green
Lai Ka Tak, Patrick

Non-executive directors:
Augustus Ralph Marshall
Lim Ghee Keong
(alternate director to Augustus Ralph Marshall)
Christopher John David Clarke

Independent non-executive directors:

Owen Mark Lewellin Rhys (appointed on 16 February 2009)
V-Nee Yeh (resigned on 20 January 2009)

Thaddeus Thomas Beczak

Simon Murray
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Report of the Directors
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Directors (cont’d)

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws,
Messrs Simon Murray and Augustus Ralph Marshall will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr Owen
Mark Lewellin Rhys who was newly appointed by the Board on 16
February 2009 will also retire from office in accordance with bye-
law 86(2) at the forthcoming annual general meeting and will offer
himself for re-election for another term at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of Messrs. Simon Murray and Thaddeus Thomas Beczak
and considered them as independent in accordance with the Listing

Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-clection at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2008, which do not constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules are disclosed in note

34 to the financial statements.
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Share Option Scheme

A Share Option Scheme (“the Scheme”) was approved and adopted
by the shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company on
11 July 2002. The following information relating to the Scheme are
made pursuant to the requirements as contained in Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules (reference is made to the circular of the Company
dated 24 June 2002 (the “Circular”). Terms defined in the Circular
have the same meanings when used in the following summary unless

the context requires otherwise):

i) Purpose of the Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge
the contribution that Eligible Persons have made or may
make to the Company and to attract and retain and motivate

talented staff.

ii) Participants of the Scheme
The participants of the Scheme shall be such Eligible Persons as

the Board in its absolute discretion determines.

iii) Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the

Scheme

The maximum number of the Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding Options to subscribe for
Shares granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue of the Company as at the date
of approval of the Scheme. As at 31 December 2008 and the
date of this report, 8,949,600 Shares were available for issue
under the Scheme representing 3.97% of the issued share

capital of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
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Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

Maximum entitlement to any one participant

Under the Scheme, the maximum entitlement to Options of
each Eligible Person shall be such that the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of Options granted
and to be granted to him/her in any 12 months period up to
each Commencement Date must not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the relevant Commencement
Date.

Period and payment on acceptance of options

Under the Scheme, an Offer may be accepted by an Eligible
Person in whole or in part in respect of all Shares for which
it is offered to such Eligible Person when the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the Offer duly signed by the Eligible
Person together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company within forty days from the Offer
Date.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The Subscription Price in respect of any Option shall be not
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a Share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the relevant
Commencement Date in respect of such Option, which must
be a Business Day; (ii) an amount equivalent to the mean
closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five Business Days immediately
preceding the relevant Commencement Date in respect of such
Option, which must be a Business Day, and (iii) the nominal

value of a Share.

Remaining life of the Scheme
The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date unless otherwise

terminated under the terms of the Scheme.
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Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

Details of Options granted to directors and employees under the

Scheme as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Outstanding
options as at

Report of the Directors
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Outstanding

options as at

1 January Exercised/ 31 December
2008 lapsed/ 2008
BRRNAE Granted cancelled R ZEF N\ Subscription
Date of Rl during the  during the year = H=1—H price
options granted WA EZ year  RAERATHE A2 per share
&% th W B A 11 i ¢ AR R fiehe/ ik g Vi B IR R
HKS$
Directors Hg
Daniel George Green FHg o Bhk 18 September 2003 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 0.500
“EFF=ZFRATAR
19 November 2004 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.602
L N
21 November 2005 2,200,000 - - 2,200,000 0.700
“EFLFEF-AZt+—H
02 January 2008 - 1,600,000 - 1,600,000 1.490
“EENF-HZH
Lai Ka Tak, Patrick 515 18 September 2003 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 0.500
“ER=ZFRAATAR
19 November 2004 1,700,000 - - 1,700,000 0.602
“EFNEF AT A
21 November 2005 1,800,000 - - 1,800,000 0.700
“EFRFT AR
Employees 1/ 18 September 2003 200,000 - - 200,000 0.500
“EFF=ZFRATAR
21 November 2005 500,000 - - 500,000 0.700
“EFRET-AZTR
11,100,000 1,600,000 - 12,700,000
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Report of the Directors

3 fr

Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

At the dates before the Options were granted, 17 September 2003,
18 November 2004, 20 November 2005 and 31 December 2007,
the market value per share was HK$0.500, HK$0.602, HK$0.700
and HK$1.490 respectively.

The Options granted on 18 September 2003 can be exercised in two
instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 September 2005
and 30 August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time between 1
September 2006 and 30 August 2010.

The Options granted on 19 November 2004 can be exercised in two
instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 November 2006
and 30 August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time between 1
November 2007 and 30 August 2010.

The Options granted on 21 November 2005 can be exercised in two
instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 November 2007
and 30 August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time between 1
November 2008 and 30 August 2010.

The Options granted on 2 January 2008 can be exercised in two
instalments, 50% of which at any time between 2 January 2010 and
10 July 2012 and the remaining 50% at any time between 2 January
2011 and 10 July 2012.

Apart from the Scheme mentioned above, at no time during the year
was the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate. None of the directors (including their spouse
and children under 18 years of age) have been granted, or have

exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company.
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Share Option Scheme (cont’d) U OB R T B ()
Based on the binomial option pricing model, the fair value of the ¥ —TEAE R ER G E S I S FE
Options granted on 18 September 2003, 19 November 2004, 21 =4 JLH +/\H ~ ZFZEA+—H )L

November 2005 and 2 January 2008 are HK$0.248, HK$0.141, H > —“FXhnFE+—H_+—HULZF
HK$0.180 and HK$0.680 respectively. However, since the & /\4FE—H = HFZ W BRE 2 AFHEE
valuation relies on subjective assumptions such as the estimated a3 0l B W H0.248 70 ~ # F0.14100 - W KK
volatility of the Share price, the binomial option pricing model  0.1807T K 5 ¥0.68070  Hi Ji 3% [ I i o2
does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value BTG ZEAE M - BLEREE > 491 4 36 1A i
of the Options. The volatility measured at the standard deviation B I8 W& » PRI bt = T = B 16 E o i A9 5ok b
of continuously compounded share returns is based on statistical — $& 7] 52 ) B R ME 20 (B (B - FRAEHE 5 IX

analysis of daily share prices over the last three years. 5 I S 14 5 T 225 T 2 100 DR B i - R AR
Pt 2 =44 HRAE /Y 0 A RS
[ o
The weighted average assumptions used are as follows: JIRESE B { A AR s an R -
Options granted on
S JBe M52 213 1 290
2 January 21 November 19 November 18 September
2008 2005 2004 2003
TREAE “RRIE “RENE CRREL

—H=ZH +—A=+—-B +—H+NIH JUA+AHR

Risk free interest rate (in %) o JEL B 1) 2R (%) 2.7 4.4 2.8 3.8
Expected life (in years) FFHE (4F) 4.5 5.0 6.0 6.9
Volatility (in %) R (%) 65.4 51.2 49.2 77.5
Expected dividend per share (cents) A R (i) 4.4 4.4 4.4 4.4
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short WY K EBEATBA BRI - M B
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures JBe O B A 7 2 M A B IR Y

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of each A FE/FE+H =+—H  R\EALR
director in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the — F]#% {5 7 M W & Mol (I35 75 K & e
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning 1)) %3524“@7@32 F e BT > SR
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as PEA S A F AT R SR 28 5 W R HE <
recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section T K& A2y j& )fiﬁﬁ B RN

352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock K AHEHE M ( B8 g5 SN B AR5
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by~ XV#B) 2 & {53 ~ *H %5 JBe iy K AE 55 2 ME i e
Directors of Listed Companies were as follows: WREWE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each I TR0, 1000 2 27 ik
Number of shares held
FA BB YA
Equity Percentage
Trusts and derivatives of issued
similar (Note iii) share capital
Personal Family Corporate interests JBe A Total Ho s
interests interests interests itk AR interests B A 48 2
LN £ F 4 % MR A2 B % (B 3kiii) HE 2 4 LKL
Executive directors: Hir##:
Michael John Green Ko B 1,272,000 - — 166,093,617 - 167,365,617 74.29%
(Note i)
(FiszED)
Daniel George Green FHe o Bk 900,000 - - 166,093,617 7,000,000 173,993,617 77.23%
(Note ii)
(B ki)
Lai Ka Tak, Patrick R - - - - 5,000,000 5,000,000 222%
Non-executive directors: FHTESH:
Christopher John David Clarke flj 3% 200,000 - - - - 200,000 0.09%
Augustus Ralph Marshall Augustus Ralph
Marshall - - - - - - -
Lim Ghee Keong (alternate director o # X (Augustus
Augustus Ralph Marshall) Ralph Marshall Z &
{EF) - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B FATEE:
V-Nee Yeh i
(resigned on 20 January 2009) (RZFENE
—R =T HEHE) 74,444 - - - - 74,444 0.03%
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak SR - - - - - - -
Simon Murray HIR 343,487 - - - - 343,487 0.15%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
(cont’d)

Notes:

(i) Such shares were held through corporations on behalf of the Michael Green
Family Trust.

(ii)  Such shares were held through corporations on behalf of the Michael Green

Family Trust in which Mr Daniel George Green has a beneficial interest.

(iii) These represented interests of options granted to directors under a share option
scheme to subscribe for shares of the Company, further details of which are set

out in the section “Share Option Scheme” of this report.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives
of the Company are long positions. None of the directors held any
short position in the shares, underlying shares of equity derivatives

or debentures of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the directors
and chief executives (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or exercised,
any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if
applicable) of the Company and its associated corporations required

to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2008, the Company
had been notified of the following substantial shareholder’s
interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary share
capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in

respect of the directors and chief executives:
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures (cont’d)

Pacific Investments (BVI) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Usaha Tegas Sdn. Bhd.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the directors are
not aware of any other persons who have interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures
of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would be required to disclose to the
Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year.

Corporate Governance
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company

are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 38.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 11
May 2009 to 14 May 2009 (both days inclusive) during which
period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order to qualify
for the final dividend and to determine the entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2009 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s
Share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 pm on 8 May 2009.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share

capital was held in public hands.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including
a review of the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2008 with the directors.

Auditors
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Michael John Green

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2009
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Corporate Governance Report
e SERTE I &ih

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance in fulfilling the responsibilities to
shareholders. Our business culture and practices are founded upon a
common set of values that govern our relationships with customers,
employees, shareholders, suppliers and the communities in which
we operate. The Company also acknowledges and appreciates its
responsibility towards the society at large and has embarked upon

various initiatives to effectuate this.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
has promulgated the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) which came into effect in January 2005. Throughout
the year under review, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code except in certain circumstances where
in the opinion of the directors of the Company (“the Directors”)
the provisions are unsuitable to be adopted by the Company at this
stage. Details of such non-compliance are discussed later at this

section.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). The Company, having made specific enquiries,
confirms that all Directors complied throughout the year with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the Company’s

code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
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The Board

Composition of the Board

The Board of the Company comprises nine members. Apart from
the Chairman who is an executive Director, the Board comprises
two executive Directors and six non-executive directors (including
one alternate director) of which three are independent. The
composition of the Board is in conformity with rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules which stipulates a minimum of
three independent non-executive Directors with at least one of
the independent non-executive Director possesses professional

appropriate qualifications and expertise.

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr Michael John Green (Chairman)
(also appointed as alternate director to Simon Murray)
Mr Daniel George Green (Managing Director)
Mr Lai Ka Tak, Patrick

Non-executive Directors
Mr Augustus Ralph Marshall
Mr Lim Ghee Keong
(alternate director to Mr Augustus Ralph Marshall)
Mr Christopher John David Clarke

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr Owen Mark Lewellin Rhys (appointed on 16 February 2009)
Mr V-Nee Yeh (resigned on 20 January 2009)

Mr Thaddeus Thomas Beczak

Mr Simon Murray

Mr Michael John Green is the father of Mr Daniel George Green
and has certain investments made in common with Mr Simon
Murray. Biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 9 to 13 of

this Report.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors and the
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.
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The Board (cont’d) HHE (8

Composition of the Board (cont’d) WA (H)
Throughout the year, the Board held 4 meetings. A summary of the — 4F A » # 5 € % B2 17 DU R gk o S F
attendance of respective Directors is stated below: Jit R RO Bk
No. of meetings
E PN
Held during
Name of Directors Designation in the Board Category the year Attended
WAL S WA B B WA R K B
Michael John Green Chairman Executive Director 4 4
Ao Bk B Wi
Daniel George Green Managing Director Executive Director 4 4
FHE o Bk R Wi H
Lai Ka Tak Patrick Finance Director Executive Director 4 4
R515 WHBs WiTEH
Augustus Ralph Marshall Director Non-executive Director 4 0
g FPATESE
Lim Ghee Keong Alternate director to Non-executive Director 4 3
S Augustus Ralph Marshall ~ JF# /T H F
Augustus Ralph MarshallZ
ERES
Christopher John David Clarke Director Non-executive Director 4 3
fif 3k i FHITES
Owen Mark Lewellin Rhys Director Independent non-executive ~ Not Applicable  Not Applicable
(appointed on 16 February 2009)  EH Director NNl A
i (R _FENE_H+RHE WP ESE
%1t)
V-Nee Yeh Director Independent non-executive 4 4
(resigned on 20 January 2009) #HH Director
BHER (R-FENE-AZTH B P ATE SR
BT
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak Director Independent non-executive 4 4
MR EH Director
Bar AT S
Simon Murray Director Independent non-executive 4 4*
R EH Director
B AT E R
* Attended by Mr Michael John Green as alternate Director * K o AR SEAE DU B B Otk
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Division of Responsibilities

The Board is chaired by the Chairman and daily management is
overseen by the Managing Director (“MD”) whose role is similar
to that of a CEO. The Board members meet from time to time
to discharge their duties effectively including setting corporate
strategic objectives; identifying potential risks and affirming that
available policies are in hand; delivering standards of directors,
chief executives’ ethical behaviour; ensuring company accounts
are prepared on a going concern basis; and disclosures are
communicated to authorities and the public on a timely basis. The
management formulates and implements the Board’s decisions while

the Board ratifies and monitors the same.

Mr Michael John Green and Mr Daniel George Green hold the
posts of Chairman and MD respectively. This segregation ensures a
clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage
the Board and the MD’s responsibility to manage the Company’s

business.

As the Chairman of the Company, Mr Michael John Green not
only oversees the effective running of the Board but also plays a
full and constructive part in the development and determination
of the Group’s strategies and overall commercial objectives. With
close consultation with the Chairman, other Board members and
the management team, the MD develops the Group’s strategies and
implements the decisions of the Board and its committees. The
Board also comprises independent non-executive Directors who
bring strong independent judgement, knowledge and experience to

the Board’s deliberations.
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Directors’ Appointment

Notwithstanding the provisions of the CG Code, the non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term and no specific
provisions are available under the Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”) where Directors are obliged to retire by rotation at least
once every three years. The Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”) provide that, save that the Board shall have the absolute
discretion to determine whether or not the Chairman and/or the
Managing Director of the Company shall be subject to retirement
by rotation, each annual general meeting one-third of the directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation. To ensure the smooth running and continuous
adherence to the strategic goals of the Company, the Board believes
that it is more practical for the Chairman/Managing Director not to
be subject to retirement by rotation. Though the Bye-laws deviate
from the CG Code, the Board considers it appropriate as all other
Directors, including those non-executives, at present are effectively
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A

retiring director is eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2), any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office until the following general meeting of the Company and

shall then be eligible for re-election thereat.

Remuneration of Directors

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in 2005
with its members comprising two independent non-executive
Directors and one non-executive Director. Mr Thaddeus Thomas

Beczak was appointed Chairman of the Committee.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to
the Board in respect of the Company’s policy on directors’
remuneration packages. The Committee helps to establish and
maintain an appropriate and competitive level of remuneration to
attract, retain and motivate people of highest caliber and experience
needed to shape and execute strategy and deliver shareholder value

in the context of an ever more competitive employment market.
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Remuneration of Directors (cont’d)

The Company has not adopted the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee as prescribed in the CG Code in full
but has duly adopted its own terms of reference that better suits
the practical situation of the Company. The Board considers
that the key responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
shall focus on assessing the reasonableness of the remuneration
of and fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors. The
Board understands that the terms of reference adopted by the
Remuneration Committee deviates from rules B.1.3(a)-(e) of the
CG Code as its scope does not cover the senior management of the
Company. However, the Board considers that it is not practical for
the Remuneration Committee to adopt the full terms stipulated
in the CG Code because the management structure of the Group
is relatively simple and its scale of operations is modest. It is also
noted that the executive Directors have extensive experience in
the industry and are fully qualified to determine the remuneration
packages of employees of the Company including the senior
management. It has always been the Company’s practice to provide
compensation with reference to the prevailing market conditions.
The remuneration details, together with the financial statements of
the Company, are also subject to review and approval by the Board
annually. As a result, it is considered more practical not to delegate
the responsibility to the Remuneration Committee to determine
any specific remuneration packages of the senior management. The
Board believes that such arrangement a) will maintain a formal and
transparent procedure for setting policy on executive Directors’
remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for all
Directors; b) will not affect the Company in providing transparent
information of the Directors’ remuneration to the public; ¢) will
give adequate authority to the Remuneration Committee to protect
the interest of the Company and the minority shareholders; d)
will enable the Company to maintain a reasonable balance of cost
and benefit. Adopted terms of reference of the Remuneration

Committee is available on the website of the Company.
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Remuneration of Directors (cont’d)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee members met once
to determine the remuneration policies of the Group. No executive
Director takes part in any discussion about his own remuneration.
Details of Directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits and the
granting of share options during the year are disclosed on pages 99

to 101 and 21 of this Report respectively.

FMEZE e BN LS gEREZA
TRk

Composition of the Remuneration Committee and details of

members’ attendance to the Committee are set out below:

Number of meetings

K Y
Designation in Held during

Name of member the Committee the year Attended
B BBk 44 ZHAWNZ WG AR RAT R WK B
Mr Thaddeus Thomas Beczak Chairman 1 1
EE S I
Mr Owen Mark Lewellin Rhys Member Not Applicable Not Applicable

(appointed on 16 February 2009) B AN A4
W O ZFFFE A 8 H &AL
Mr V-Nee Yeh (resigned on 20 January 2009) Member 1 0
BEHEFROLE (RZFFNFE-H T HEMD) KA
Mr Christopher John David Clarke Member 1 1
] HE 2 S 2R B
Mr Michael John Green Advisor 1 1
Kim e AR s ) i Fi
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference that describe the authority and duties of the Committee.
Such terms of reference were prepared and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in compliance
with the code provisions stipulated in the CG Code. Currently,
the Audit Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Messrs. Owen Mark Lewellin Rhys and Thaddeus
Thomas Beczak and a non-executive director, Mr Christopher
John David Clarke, who among themselves possess appropriate
professional qualifications or expertise as required under rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules. Mr Owen Mark Lewellin Rhys is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. Adopted terms of reference of the Audit

Committee is available on the website of the Company.

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board. It provides an
important link between the Board and the Company’s auditors in
matters coming within the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews
the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and
risk evaluation. In fulfilling its responsibilities, the work of the

Audit Committee during the year include the followings:

i) a review of the draft annual and interim financial statements
and the draft results announcements of the Company focusing
on main areas of judgment, consistency of and changes in
accounting policies and adequacy of information disclosure

prior to recommending them to the Board for approval;

ii) a review of the results of external audit and discussion with the

external auditors;

iii) identify and mitigate potential risks in areas of operation
and financial information systems as well as the industry

environment as a whole;

iv) a review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal controls, through review of the work

undertaken by the management and external auditors.
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Audit Committee (cont’d)
Composition of the Audit Committee and details of members’

attendance to the Committee meetings are set out below:

wEZAG (8
FHEER G R E AR AT B e R
ZRCEk

Number of meetings

e
Designation in Held during

Name of member the Committee the year Attended
B B0k ZHANZ S AR BT K R K ¥
Mr Owen Mark Lewellin Rhys Chairman Not Applicable Not Applicable

(appointed on 16 February 2009) EN AN A
Zr ek (R “EFEEINFE H T ANHZEL)
Mr V-Nee Yeh (resigned on 20 January 2009) Chairman 2 2

(1 =% JUAE— H =+ B (E)
Mr Thaddeus Thomas Beczak Member 2 2
H 28 e A W&
Mr Christopher John David Clarke Member 2 2
filj FE He e D=1

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year, the fees paid/payable to the auditors in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors to the Group

were as follows:

A% B Vil Y

AE A AR A% ST ) A B R AL > A A K OE
e % MG B AT AT T A% B 2 2
T

Amount (HKS)

Nature of services Tk 75 M B B (W)
Audit services N R 1,684,142
Non audit services IF 1 IR Bs
(i) Tax services (i)  BLH IR 202,600
(ii) Other services (i) HAth MR -

Directors’ Acknowledgement to Prepare Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. In the statements, the generally
accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have been adopted,
appropriate accounting policies have been used and applied
consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates
have been made, and relevant financial disclosure obligations under

the Listing Rules have been taken into account.
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Directors’ Acknowledgement to Prepare Financial
Statements (cont’d)

The relevant responsibility statement from the external auditors
made pursuant to the CG Code is set out in the Report of the

Auditors on page 39 to 40.

The Board has reviewed the business plan of the Group in respect
of the forthcoming financial year and is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going

concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Internal Controls

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Board
is ultimately responsible for the Group’s system of internal control
and for reviewing its effectiveness. The system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company maintains a well-established control framework
comprising clear structures and accountabilities, well-understood
policies and procedures and budgeting and review process. The
management meets monthly with the executive Directors to review
divisional financial performance, business development plans,
management issues, financial budgets and forecasts and capital
expenditure proposals. The executive Directors also regularly receive

reports from executives and functional heads on key risk subjects.

The Board works together with the Audit Committee to discharge
its internal control responsibility for the ongoing oversight of the
internal control framework which provides an important key to

reinforcing the organization’s commitment to internal control.

The Company has implemented an annual programme to conduct
an in-depth review of financial, operational and compliance controls
and compliance with company financial policies at business units.
The Board reports its findings to the Audit Committee and any

material issues are reported and discussed with the Board.
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Investor Relations

The Chairman of the Company and of the Committees are
available at annual general meetings to answer questions raised
by shareholders of the Company or other parties. To facilitate
enforcement of shareholders’ rights, substantially separate issues at

general meetings are dealt with under separate resolutions.

Changes to constitutional documents

The Company has adopted at the annual general meeting held
on 6 May 2005 a new set of Bye-laws to incorporate the changes
promulgated by the new Listing Rules effective on 1 January 2004,
bringing it up to date with the Securities and Futures Ordinance

and in line with current best practices.

General meeting

The general meeting provides a forum for the Board to
communicate with the shareholders. During the year, the Company
held one general meeting on 9 May 2008. The following ordinary

resolutions were passed at the meeting by a show of hands:

1. To receive and adopt the audited consolidated financial
statements and the reports of the directors and auditors for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

2. To declare a final dividend of 4.4 HK cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

3. To re-elect Mr Lai Ka Tak, Patrick as a director.
4.  To re-elect Mr Christopher John David Clarke as a director.

5. To re-elect Mr Thaddeus Thomas Beczak as a director.

6. To authorize the board of directors to fix the remuneration of

the directors.

7. To re-appoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of
the Company and authorise the board of directors to fix their

remuneration.

8. A

To grant a general mandate to the directors to issue

securities.

B. To grant a general mandate to the directors to repurchase

the Company’s securities.

C. To extend the securities issue mandate granted to
the directors to include securities repurchased by the

Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ARNHOLD HOLDINGS
LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Arnhold
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to 138, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008,
and the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2009
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

AR a 1R R

For the year ended
31 December

RET A= —HIESEE

2008 2007
RN SRR LF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 BT T 0
Turnover e 5 418,221 387,904
Cost of sales B A 6 (318,494) (302,634)
Gross profit A ¥ ) 99,727 85,270
Other revenues HA e A 5 4,091 5,588
Operating expenses LB S 7 (79,827) (75,697)
Gain on disposal of A ROE Y AR
an investment property 16 94 439
Gain on disposal of an associate Y B N ) i A 20 — 2,667
Operating profit KE8 ek ] 24,085 18,267
Finance costs 5 2 8 (93) (1406)
Share of loss of associates JHE A B ] s 4R - (1,101)
Profit before income tax o B 15 B T Yas ) 23,992 17,020
Income tax expense Fr 15 i 12 (2,079) (215)
Profit attributable to shareholders J% R A\ Vs A 13 21,913 16,805
Basic earnings per share (cents) BBEARZAF] (A 14 9.73 7.47
Diluted earnings per share (cents) T FRC 48 v 22 ) (S AUl 14 9.47 7.28
Proposed dividend o= 9 95 15 12,391 9,913
Proposed dividend per share (cents) %k & B B (H5AIlI) 15 5.5 4.4

The notes on pages 48 to 138 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

S48 F 138 H M B 5t 5 45 A B S R R 1 3
B R4y o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meEERMER

As at 31 December

w+=A=1+—H
2008 2007
ZRENE SRR LA
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 BT T oo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I Ui By X e

Investment properties @< LYJE 16 3,341 9,850
Property, plant and equipment UERE Fr Y &l 17 49,769 43,807
Lease prepayments H 5 B AT 3K 18 47,837 48,886
Available-for-sale financial assets Al B RSB 21 2,787 3,159
103,734 105,702

CURRENT ASSETS i ) ¥
Inventories e 22 27,385 25,514
Trade and other receivables & 5 B HoAh R i 3k 23 107,008 115,177
Derivative financial instruments A4/ T A 24 371 2,597
Deferred income tax assets I AE T A5 B & A 30 - 1,000
Current income tax recoverable A T 75 BRI 8 [E] 3k 0H 1 =
Cash and cash equivalents e kHE&5EY 25 77,108 74,524

o 211,873 218,812

CURRENT LIABILITIES i ) £ 4%
Trade and other payables & 5 T HoAth S 3K 26 78,946 104,822
Derivative financial instruments R4/ T 5 24 4,413 58
Provisions e 27 2,375 1,677
Current income tax liabilities W TS B A - 292

o 85734 106,849

NET CURRENT ASSETS L ) B iR 126,139 111,963
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEREERMER

As at 31 December

R+=H=+—H
2008 2007
ZRENE SRR LA
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 T T oo
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT % s 4 {ii 39 ¥ ) £ 1%
LIABILITIES 229,873 217,665
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES Ik it B £ £
Deferred income tax liabilities I SIE BT 15 B B 1 30 226 214
NET ASSETS ¥ R A 229,647 217,451
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A B Ak
Share capital i@ 28 22,530 22,530
Reserves it #d 29
Proposed final dividend EmEZ KWL 12,391 9,913
Others HAth 194,726 185,008
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS JBe 3 ¥ 4 229,647 217,451
Approved by the board of directors on 26 March 2009. EREENF A+ A AHEEFG
Az -
Michael John Green Lai Ka Tak, Patrick
K o B bk Rt
Chairman Finance Director
FE R

The notes on pages 48 to 138 are an integral part of these SH48F 138 H By Mt 5t /4y 45 5 A S W R AU HE

consolidated financial statements. B4 o

Annual Report 2008 44 43



Balance Sheet

BE R AL

As at 31 December

REZH=+—H
2008 2007
—RB A CEE
Note HK$’°000 HK$ 000
Wt 2k T T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I o % E
Investments in subsidiaries NGRS $ =, 19 193,849 191,580
CURRENT ASSETS L B &
Trade and other receivables B 5y B A E i 3k 23 250 245
Amount due from a subsidiary B I8 2 A R 19 13,000 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB &S EHY 25 234 180
| 13,484 10,425
CURRENT LIABILITIES T RER
Trade and other payables B 5y Je HoAth JHE AT 3k 26 203 265
NET CURRENT ASSETS weEEFEL 13,281 10,160
NET ASSETS B A W 207,130 201,740
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A B fii Hi
Share capital A 28 22,530 22,530
Reserves b 29
Proposed final dividend kR R E 12,391 9,913
Others FHoAh 172,209 169,297
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS JBE & 4 207,130 201,740

Approved by the board of directors on 26 March 2009. ER_EFEFNE=ZH A NHEEEG

A% -
Michael John Green Lai Ka Tak, Patrick
K o bk Rt
Chairman Finance Director

EYa P #EH

The notes on pages 48 to 138 are an integral part of these SH48F 138 H By Mt 5t v 45 B A S W R AU HE

consolidated financial statements.. B IR o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended
31 December

RET A= —HIESEE

2008 2007
RN CZERERAE
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
Bt 5 BT i i T
CASH FLOWS FROM REBRHEEZBEHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax Wk BT 75 Bt i J6s A 23,992 17,020
Depreciation of property, Y2 - W AR TR I 5
plant and equipment 3,806 3,770
Amortisation of lease prepayments i B {3k 1,049 1,049
Interest income INSS N (1,506) (1,540)
Interest expenses FE X 93 146
Share of loss of associates JRE Ak g2 ) s 4R - 1,101
Loss on disposal of property, Y2 AR &
plant and equipment %A s 18 2 8
Gain on disposal of A AW R
an investment property 16 (94) (439)
Gain on disposal of an associate B B R AR 20 - (2,667)
Net unrealised fair value loss/ it THZ
(gain) on derivative financial 58BN FH
instruments FhsE 7 (BA) 4,042 (2,539)
Net realised fair value loss on it 4em T HY
derivative financial instruments B 45 B /0 7 1 4 2,539 695
Employee share-based & B ME = 1 R RE St il 2
compensation benefits e A1) 568 386
CHANGES IN WORKING REBHEAZD
CAPITAL 34,491 16,990
Increase in amount due JE Wi Bk 5 A W) 2 KK
from associates Ham - (131)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 17 & (#Hn) W > (1,871) 284
Decrease in construction contracts & 28 & &) 3 > - 18
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 Ko Ho At U s D
other receivables ($8m) 8,169 (43,879)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and & 5y Fe HoAh JE AF 3k
other payables (WD) B (25,876) 38,428
Increase/(decrease) in provisions B, (W) 698 (6)
CASH GENERATED FROM RBBHELZ
OPERATIONS B & T8 15,611 11,704
Interest received Fr 5 1 5 1,506 1,540
Interest paid EEOIPSS (93) (146)
Hong Kong profits tax paid T W P A5 B S (499) (355)
Overseas tax paid T SN T S (861) (757)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM & ¥ #H k2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES Bl &3 15,664 11,986
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mallainER

For the year ended
31 December

RET A= —HIESEE

2008 2007
CRRNAE CZERERAE
Note HK$’000 HK$000
Bt 5 T i i T
CASH FLOWS FROM B EH MBS
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for purchase of Wil B D 3 - AR SR S
property, plant and equipment (9,771) (2,717)
Proceeds from disposal of HEYE - BHE X
property, plant and equipment BRLIEET S 1 15
Proceeds from disposal of HEREWEE K
an investment property 16 6,603 5,339
Proceeds from disposal of B A N R T AR 3K
an associate 20 - 11,199
Loan to an associate BT B S A F - (4,400)
NET CASH (USED IN)/ BRI (B, i
GENERATED FROM Z B3
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 3,167) 9,436
CASH FLOWS FROM 0 4% ) A B U
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of BEAT I 4 Iy B 15 K
ordinary shares - 400
Dividend paid J& B3 (9,913) -
NET CASH (USED IN)/ N () A
GENERATED FROM Z B TR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES £93?1§) 77777777777 4 70707 B
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND  Bl& KRB &% M2
CASH EQUIVALENTS B4 I 5781 2,584 21,822
Cash and cash equivalents FY 2B LSS EY
at the beginning of the year 74,524 52,702
Cash and cash equivalents R RB2EEY
at the end of the year 77,108 74,524

The notes on pages 48 to 138 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Ao o B A 5 SR

For the year ended 31 December
BEFZH = HIRARRE

Available-
for-sale Employee
investment  share-based
reserve Compeﬂsation
Share  WHHEZ reserve Retained  Contributed
Share capital premium o5 i ELJB earnings surplus Total
JBe A JBe 3 ik i 5 it i REEAN B b Hm
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ik ik i i T T ik
At 1 January 2007 RoERLE
—H—H 22,450 92,389 155 1,749 81,468 808 199,019
Profit attributable P 3R IRE A1 3 1

to shareholders = = = = 16,805 = 16,805
Employee share-based 1% B I = I A b

compensation benefits wl # Z fa F = - - 386 - - 386
Employee share option 1 5 8 P HE T 3 -

scheme:

Issuance of ordinary shares i % %5 48 i Jit 80 320 - - - - 400
Surplus on revaluation H AR - - 841 - - - 841
At 31 December 2007 A EELAE

ﬂuﬂ =t—H 22,530 92,709 996 2,135 98,273 808 217,451
Representing: BHA:
2007 Proposed final dividend —ZF %L 4F
Z AW E 9,913
Others Hits 88,360
Retained earnings RZEELE
as at 31 December 2007 T-H=1—H
Z R EBLA 98,273
At 1 January 2008 b RT )\
—H—H 22,530 92,709 996 2,135 98,273 808 217,451
Profit attributable P 3R IRE A1 3 1

to shareholders = = = = 21,913 = 21,913
Dividend relating to 2007 W )\

and paid in May 2008 R’z —Z%t

EERE - - - - (9,913) - (9,913)
Employee share-based 1 5 JHE =2 f e HE

compensation benefits FH# 2 A - - - 568 - = 568
Deficit on revaluation EiiEE = = (372) = = = (372)
At 31 December 2008 RoFRRNE

+ZA=+—H 22,530 92,709 624 2,703 110,273 808 229,647
Representing: EHA:
2008 Proposed final dividend ~— % % /\4F Ji #
ZARBBE 12,391
Others HAth 97,882
Retained earnings REZFNAE
as at 31 December 2008 +ZA=+—H
ZREBA 110,273
The notes on pages 48 to 138 are an integral part of these  ZH48% 138H MM 5k 445 A B K

consolidated financial statements.
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General Information

The principal activities of Arnhold Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
(i) trading, (ii) manufacturing and export and (iii) retail and

renovation operations.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March
2009.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRSs), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss and

investment properties, which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
(a) Amendments and interpretations effective in 2008

e The HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement’, amendment on reclassification
of financial assets permits reclassification of certain
financial assets out of the held-for-trading and
available-for-sale categories if specified conditions
are met. The related amendment to HKFRS 7,
‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, introduces
disclosure requirements with respect to financial
assets reclassified out of the held-for-trading and
available-for-sale categories. The amendment is
effective prospectively from 1 July 2008. This
amendment does not have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements, as the Group has not

reclassified any financial assets.

e HK(IFRIC) - Int 11, ‘HKFRS 2 — Group and
treasury share transactions’, provides guidance
on whether share-based transactions involving
treasury shares or involving group entities (for
example, options over a parent’s shares) should
be accounted for as equity-settled or cash-settled
share-based payment transactions in the stand-
alone accounts of the parent and group companies.
This interpretation does not have an impact on the

Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ¥ R B RE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL & 5l BORHH 2 (4])
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 2.1 B AEHE (4F)

(a) Amendments and interpretations effective in 2008

(cont’d)

¢ HK(IFRIC) — Int 14, ‘HKAS 19 — The limit
on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction’, provides
guidance on assessing the limit in HKAS 19 on
the amount of the surplus that can be recognised
as an asset. It also explains how the pension asset
or liability may be affected by a statutory or
contractual minimum funding requirement. This
interpretation does not have any impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

(b) Interpretations effective in 2008 but not relevant
for the Group’s operations
The following interpretation to published standards
is mandatory for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2008 but is not relevant to the

> 9
Gl‘OLlp S operations:

e HK(IFRIC) — Int 12, ‘Service Concession

arrangements’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group
The following standards and amendments to existing
standards have been published and are mandatory for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009 or later periods, but the Group has

not early adopted them:

e HKAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ (effective from 1 January 2009). The
revised standard will prohibit the presentation
of items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-
owner changes in equity’) in the statement of
changes in equity, requiring ‘non-owner changes
in equity’ to be presented separately from owner
changes in equity. All non-owner changes in equity
will be required to be shown in a performance
statement, but entities can choose whether to
present one performance statement (the statement
of comprehensive income) or two statements (the
consolidated income statement and statement of
comprehensive income). Where entities restate or
reclassify comparative information, they will be
required to present a restated balance sheet as at
the beginning comparative period in addition to
the current requirement to present balance sheets
as at the end of the current period and comparative
period. The Group will apply HKAS 1 (Revised)
from 1 January 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ¥ R B RE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL & 5l BORHH 2 (4])

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 2.1 B AEHE (4F)
(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to (c) D52 3% ity 75 5 [ 7 JE 3 7
existing standards that are not yet effective and have IRAY 1y B ~ 15 7] K 2 B A7

not been early adopted by the Group (cont’d) Ryt B (A )
e HKAS 23 (Revised), ‘Borrowing costs’ (effective o FHiEFHERI23 (RIEFET)

from 1 January 2009). The amendment requires
an entity to capitalise borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset (one that takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for use or
sale) as part of the cost of that asset. The option
of immediately expensing those borrowing costs
will be removed. The Group will apply HKAS 23
(Revised) retrospectively from 1 January 2009 but
is currently not applicable to the Group as there are

no qualifying assets.

HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and separate
financial statements’ (effective from 1 July 2009).
The revised standard requires the effects of all
transactions with non-controlling interests to be
recorded in equity if there is no change in control
and these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also
specifies the accounting treatment when control
is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is
re-measured to fair value and a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. The Group will apply
HKAS 27 (Revised) prospectively to transactions
with non-controlling interests from 1 January
2010, but it is not expected to have any impact on

the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BS ¥ R B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL & 5l BORHH 2 (4])

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 2.1 B AEHE (4F)
(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to (c) D52 3% ity 75 5 [ 7 JE 3 7
existing standards that are not yet effective and have IRAY 1y B ~ 15 7] K 2 B A7

not been early adopted by the Group (cont’d) Ryt B (A )
o HFHlEEHEz2 (BRTA)

e HKAS 32 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments:

Presentation’, and HKAS 1 (Amendment),
‘Presentation of financial statements’ — ‘Puttable
financial instruments and obligations arising on
liquidation’ (effective from 1 January 2009). The
amended standards require entities to classify
puttable financial instruments and instruments,
or components of instruments that impose on
the entity an obligation to deliver to another
party a pro rata share of the net assets of the
entity only on liquidation as equity, provided
the financial instruments have particular features
and meet specific conditions. The Group will
apply the HKAS 32 (Amendment) and HKAS
1(Amendment) from 1 January 2009, but it is
not expected to have any impact on the Group’s

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL & 5l BORHH 2 (4])
2.1 i 2L U ()
(c) V32 3% i 7 2 B 75 S 38
TRy L - 15 5T R B B

Rt R (4)
o FiEB L2 (BRTA)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and have

not been early adopted by the Group (cont’d)
¢ HKFRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Share-based payment’

(effective from 1 January 2009). The amended
standard deals with vesting conditions and
cancellations. It clarifies that vesting conditions
are service conditions and performance conditions
only. Other features of a share-based payment
are not vesting conditions. As such these features
would need to be included in the grant date fair
value for transactions with employees and others
providing similar services, that is, these features
would not impact the number of awards expected
to vest or valuation thereof subsequent to grant
date. All cancellations, whether by the entity or by
other parties, should receive the same accounting
treatment. The Group will apply HKFRS 2
(Amendment) from 1 January 2009. It is not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s

financial statements.

HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business combinations’
(effective from 1 July 2009). The revised standard
continues to apply the acquisition method to
business combinations, with some significant
changes. For example, all payments to purchase
a business are to be recorded at fair value at
the acquisition date, with contingent payments
classified as debt subsequently re-measured through
the consolidated income statement. There is a
choice on an acquisition by acquisition basis to
measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets. All acquisition-related costs should
be expensed. The Group will apply HKFRS 3
(Revised) prospectively to all business combinations
from 1 January 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BS ¥ R B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 o Bk BOR B (4H)
2.1 iRk (4)

(c) IR 2k 3% i 7 55 1) 7D S 78
existing standards that are not yet effective and have IRAY 1y B ~ 15 7] K 2 B A7
not been early adopted by the Group (cont’d) Ryt B (A )

o FE B HERIS [ E >

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to

e HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments (effective from

1 January 2009). It replaces HKAS 14, ‘Segment
reporting’, and aligns segment reporting with
the requirements of the US standard SFAS 131,
‘Disclosures about segments of an enterprise and
related information’. The new standard requires
a ‘management approach’, under which segment
information is presented on the same basis as that
used for internal reporting purposes. The Group
will apply HKFRS 8 from 1 January 2009, and

comparatives will be restated.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16, ‘Hedges of a net investment
in a foreign operation’ (effective from 1 October
2008). HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 clarifies the
accounting treatment in respect of net investment
hedging. This includes the fact that net investment
hedging relates to differences in functional
currency not presentation currency, and hedging
instruments may be held anywhere in the Group.
The requirements of HKAS 21, “The effects of
changes in foreign exchange rates’, do apply to the
hedged item. The Group will apply HK(IFRIC) —
Int 16 from 1 January 2009. It is not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ¥ R B RE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (cont’d)

e HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published in

October 2008

— HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of

financial statements’ (effective from 1 January
2009). The amendment clarifies that some rather
than all financial assets and liabilities classified
as held for trading in accordance with HKAS
39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement’ are examples of current assets and
liabilities respectively. The Group will apply the
HKAS 1 (Amendment) from 1 January 2009,
but it is not expected to have any impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 23 (Amendment), ‘Borrowing costs’
(effective from 1 January 2009). The definition
of borrowing costs has been amended so
that interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method defined in HKAS
39 ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement’. This eliminates the inconsistency
of terms between HKAS 39 and HKAS 23. The
Group will apply the HKAS 23 (Amendment)
prospectively from 1 January 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BS ¥ R B R

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T E &5 BORHH 2 (4])

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 2.1 L (&)
(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to (c) V4423 iy A5 4 8] 7 JE 42 3
existing standards that are not yet effective and have IR 1 B ~ f5 5T B B B AT

not been early adopted by the Group (cont’d) Ry (HH)
— HKAS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments in — Fk e s R8s (BEFT

associates’ (and consequential amendments to
HKAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’
and HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments:
Disclosures’) (effective from 1 January 2009).
An investment in associate is treated as a single
asset for the purposes of impairment testing
and any impairment loss is not allocated to
specific assets included within the investment,
for example, goodwill. Reversals of impairment
are recorded as an adjustment to the investment
balance to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the associate increases. The Group
will apply the HKAS 28 (Amendment) to
impairment tests related to investment in
associates and any related impairment losses
from 1 January 2009, but it is not expected
to have any impact on the Group’s financial

statements.

HKAS 36 (Amendment), Tmpairment of assets’
(effective from 1 January 2009). Where fair
value less costs to sell is calculated on the basis
of discounted cash flows, disclosures equivalent
to those for value-in-use calculation should
be made. The Group will apply the HKAS
36 (Amendment) and provide the required
disclosure where applicable for impairment tests
from 1 January 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ¥ R B RE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (cont’d)

— HKAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’

(effective from 1 January 2009). A prepayment
may only be recognised in the event that
payment has been made in advance of
obtaining right of access to goods or receipt of
services. The Group will apply the HKAS 38
(Amendment) prospectively to the prepayment
from 1 January 2009. It is not expected to have
a material impact on the Group’s financial

statements.

HKAS 39 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’ (effective from 1
January 2009).

— This amendment clarifies that it is possible
for there to be movements into and out of
the fair value through profit or loss category
where a derivative commences or ceases to
qualify as a hedging instrument in cash flow

or net investment hedge.

— The definition of financial asset or financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss as
it relates to items that are held for trading is
also amended. This clarifies that a financial
asset or liability that is part of a portfolio
of financial instruments managed together
with evidence of an actual recent pattern of
short-term profit-taking is included in such a

portfolio on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 WMEEHIESORMHE (4)
2.1 %l oE (&)
(c) 0542 5% i 7 [ 70 J0E 32 7%
IR RY ~ 15 5T K B B AT

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have

not been early adopted by the Group (cont’d) Ryt B (A )
— The current guidance on designating and — H HiIA B 45 & Mtk
documenting hedges states that a hedging H RG] BoRE

instrument needs to involve a party external
to the reporting entity and cites a segment
as an example of a reporting entity. This
means that in order for hedge accounting to
be applied at segment level, the requirements
for hedge accounting are currently required
to be met by the applicable segment. The
amendment removes this requirement so
that HKAS 39 is consistent with HKFRS
8, ‘Operating segments’ which requires
disclosure for segments to be based on
information reported to the chief operating
decision maker. Currently, for segment
reporting purposes, each subsidiary designates
and documents (including effectiveness
testing) contracts with group treasury as fair
value or cash flow hedges so that the hedges
are reflected in the segment to which the
hedged items relate. This is consistent with
the information viewed by the chief operating
decision maker. See note 3.1 for further
details. After the amendment is effective,
the hedge will continue to be reflected in
the segment to which the hedged items
relate (and information provided to the chief
operating decision maker) but the Group will
not formally document and test this hedging

relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ¥ R B RE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL & 5l BORHH 2 (4])
2.1 S e (40
(c) IR 2 3% iiif 7 5 1Y 7 58 7

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have IRy [ ~ 15 5T R B A
not been early adopted by the Group (cont’d) Ryt B (A )

— When remeasuring the carrying amount of — EHE LA HES g

a debt instrument on cessation of fair value w2 i R

hedge accounting, the amendment clarifies
that a revised effective interest rate (calculated
at the date fair value hedge accounting ceases)

are used.

The Group will apply the HKAS 39
(Amendment) from 1 January 2009, but it is
not expected to have any impact on the Group’s

consolidated income statement.

— HKFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Non-current assets

held for sale and discontinued operations’ (and
consequential amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘First-
time adoption’) (effective from 1 July 2009). The
amendment clarifies that all of a subsidiary’s assets
and liabilities are classified as held for sale if a
partial disposal sale plan results in loss of control,
and relevant disclosure should be made for this
subsidiary if the definition of a discontinued
operation is met. A consequential amendment
to HKFRS 1 states that these amendments are
applied prospectively from the date of transition
to HKFRSs. The Group will apply the HKEFRS 5
(Amendment) prospectively to all partial disposals

of subsidiaries from 1 January 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BS ¥ R B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL & 5l BORHH 2 (4])

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 2.1 Hi)AEHE (4F)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to (c) 05 A2 3¢ iy 7 5 [ 7 JE $2 7
existing standards that are not yet effective and have IRy [ ~ 15 5T R B A
not been early adopted by the Group (cont’d) Ryt B (A )

— There are a number of minor amendments to — BN A BB MR A7 T4
HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, 21 R 3 S I
HKAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes in ah e A8 [ & 5 Bk -
accounting estimates and errors’, HKAS 10, ‘Events & 7 Al R R 8 B AN B
after the balance sheet date’, HKAS 18, ‘Revenue’ BIE |- s g ak M R0
and HKAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’ which (WA HREIHE] - Fig
are not addressed above. These amendments are A HE RIS [ 4d | e 75 s
unlikely to have an impact on the Group’s financial Rt UE R34 T 0 A 5
statements and have therefore not been analysed in 1 A Z T 8 ET
detail. RATE B3R Fo 5B

RIS K AT e A 42
14 B 15 i R A R B U
RAAEFER AT o

(d) Interpretations and amendments to existing (d ) 05 4 2k 3¢ H Bl A 5 [ #5 36 f
standards that are not yet effective and not relevant B 1 B2 17 3 B 1y i BE A A5 T
for the Group’s operations
The following interpretations and amendments PATF 7y B 0 A 36 3 e I )
to existing standards have been published and are i BB R - A 4R 1 a0 JH A
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods “EEFZRE-A-BHZE
beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or later periods BH & 1) € w40 ] BB AR 4 )
but are not relevant for the Group’s operations: PR AA > B BL A 42 [ 19 o o A

K

* HKFRS 1 (Amendment), ‘First time adoption of o HWs BB HEHIL (BT
HKFRS’ and HKAS 27 ‘Consolidated and separate A) — [ KB 4 s B
financial statements’ (effective from 1 July 2009). W HE R | K A s w e I

27— [ &5 G B s Sr B s
x| (ZFFAELA—
HEAR) -

* HKAS 19 (Amendment), ‘Employee benefits’ s HEFEIHERI19 (BFT
(effective from 1 January 2009). A) — [EEHMA] (=
FENLE—H —-HEAE

) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ¥ R B RE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL & 5l BORHH 2 (4])

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 2.1 Hi)AEHE (4F)
(d) Interpretations and amendments to existing (d ) V5 R 2 3% H B Ak 55 ] 75 2 fE
standards that are not yet effective and not relevant Bl 19 B2 1 1 1 izt BE A A BT
for the Group’s operations: (cont’d) (#)

e HKAS 39 (Amendment) ‘Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’ — ‘Eligible hedged
items’ (effective from 1 July 2009).

e HK(IFRIC) - Int 13, ‘Customer loyalty
programmes’ (effective from 1 July 2008).

e HK(IFRIC) — Int 15, ‘Agreements for construction

of real estates’ (effective from 1 January 2009).

e HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 — ‘Distributions of non-cash

assets to owners (effective from 1 July 2009).

e HK(IFRIC) — Int 18, ‘Transfers of Assets from
Customers’ (effective for transfers on or after 1 July
2009).

e HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008

— HKAS 16 (Amendment), ‘Property, plant and
equipment’ (and consequential amendment to
HKAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’) (effective
from 1 January 2009).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BS ¥ R B R

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 HEF R BORE (&)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 2.1 Hi)AEHE (4F)

(d) Interpretations and amendments to existing (d ) V5 R 2 3% H B Ak 55 ] 75 2 fE
standards that are not yet effective and not relevant Bl 19 B2 1 1 1 izt BE A A BT
for the Group’s operations: (cont’d) (#)

— HKAS 20 (Amendment), ‘Accounting for — s & E M HI20 (B FT
government grants and disclosure of government ) T BT B A & AT
assistance’ (effective from 1 January 2009). Ji A R % B 1Y 4%

T (“EENALFE—A
— HEA )

— HKAS 27 (Amendment), ‘Consolidated and — F s o ErME 27 (BRT
separate financial statements’ (effective from 1 AR) (456 KL BB
January 2009). R (ZFFNLE—

H—H#EER)

— HKAS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments in — & s e ahdE 28 (B HT
associates’ (and consequential amendments to ) THEAFATE]
HKAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ ( Jo B 2 W g 5t 4 Al
and HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: 32 [/ T E: 23|
Disclosures’) (effective from 1 January 2009). K s B HERI7 [ 4

TR PiER | HARE
i) (ZEFNLEFE—A

— H AR
— HKAS 29 (Amendment), ‘Financial reporting in — & a9 (&
hyperinflationary economies’ (effective from 1 BIAS) [ A IR AR
January 2009). TR BB A (
FhE—H—H#EE
20
— HKAS 31 (Amendment), ‘Interests in joint — F s o ErHE I3 (BFT
ventures (and consequential amendments to ) TG ERE ]
HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7) (effective from 1 ( 345 o5 51 e HI32
January 2009). B A s B 5 YE Rl 70
BB (EFENLE
—H—HEA)
— HKAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’ — & e atdERI38 (BRT
(effective from 1 January 2009). A) T EE] (—F
FhE—H—H#EE
20
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ¥ R B RE

2 HEEHFBORHE (4)
2.1 i)k (49)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)

2223

2.3

(d) Interpretations and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and not relevant
for the Group’s operations: (cont’d)

— HKAS 40 (Amendment), ‘Investment property’
(and consequential amendments to HKAS 16)
(effective from 1 January 2009).

— HKAS 41 (Amendment), ‘Agriculture’ (effective
from 1 January 2009).

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made

up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls

another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries (cont’d)

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the

Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and

are initially recognised at cost.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B #h R B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.5 Segment reporting
A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of segments operating

in other economic environments.

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated profit

and loss account.

(c¢) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:
(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet

presented are translated at the closing rate at the

date of that balance sheet;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (cont’d)
(c) Group companies (cont’d)

(ii) income and expenses for each profit and loss
account are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised

as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation
is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated

profit and loss account as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly a factory, warehouses and
offices. Buildings are shown at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. All other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged in the consolidated profit
and loss account during the financial period in which they

are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B ¥ R B R

2 WMEGGHBORRE (&)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

2.8

2.9

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

2.7 Y3k~ B B i (%)

W3 ~ RS B R B 3T B R T L
AT A AR R A R
ARk o e 2 R i M (B O

Leasehold buildings 50 years HE#T S04F
Leasehold improvements 2 — 5 years HEY ERE 24— 545
Furniture and equipment 3 — 5 years A& L 34— 54
Plant and machinery 5 — 10 years T 75 e i A 54 —104F
Motor vehicles 5 years 1R 54

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within operating expenses, in the consolidated

profit and loss account.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represents interests in leasehold land
and land use rights and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
provided to write off the cost of lease prepayments on a

straight-line basis over the respective lease periods.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings which are
owned or held under a leaschold interest to earn rental
income and/or capital appreciation or both, and that are

not occupied by the companies in the consolidated Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

,w< j%%$&3§MTﬁE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL 5l BORHHZ (4])
2.9 HHYE (48)

2.9 Investment properties (cont’d)

After initial recognition, investment property is stated in
the balance sheet at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset,

determined annually by independent qualified valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the

light of current market conditions.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for

as described in Note 2.22.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash

outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for

accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised

in the consolidated profit and loss account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B ¥ R B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL 5l BORHHZ (4])
2.9 HHYE (48)

2.9 Investment properties (cont’d)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the assets’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expenses in the
consolidated profit and loss account during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

2.10 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates

and non-financial assets

Assets that are not yet available for use are not subject
to amortisation. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.11 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: at fair value through profit and loss, loans

and receivables and available-for-sale. The classification

depends on the purposes for which the financial assets

were acquired. Management determine the classification of

its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit and

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are

classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
are classified as trade and other receivables in the
balance sheet (Note 2.13).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12

months of the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B ¥ R B R

2 WEEHHEORHE (4])
2.11 W5 ¥ A (f)
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (cont’d) (c) Wt BB & (4)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.11 Financial assets (cont’d)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated profit and
loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through consolidated
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss” category are presented in the consolidated
profit and loss account in the period in which they

arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale are

recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

,w< ﬁ%%%i%ﬂﬁhf

2 WMEGHFEBORMHE (4)
2.11 W B % (4])

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.11 Financial assets (cont’d)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (cont’d) (©

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
profit and loss account as gains or losses from

investment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset
is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Group
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis,
and option pricing models, making maximum use
of market inputs and relying as little as possible on

entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In
the case of equity securities classified as available for
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered as an
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account — is removed from equity and recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated profit and loss

account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B ¥ R B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 o Bk BOR B (4H)
2.12 Inventories 212 ]

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited in

the consolidated profit and loss account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.14 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis

of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B ¥ R B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL 5l BORHHZ (4])
2.15 Borrowings 2.15 Bk

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to

which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet

date.

2.16 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or

less, and bank overdrafts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Long service payments

Provision for long service payments is recognised for
the best estimate of the long service payments that are
required to be made to the employees of the Group
in respect of their services to date less any amounts
that would be expected to be met out of the Group’s

retirement schemes.

(b) Employee leave entitlements

()

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
by the Group for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up

to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated profit and loss account, with a

corresponding adjustment to equity .
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B ¥ R B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL 5l BORHHZ (4])
2.18 I B A A (4)
(c) MMt (4F)

2.18 Employee benefits (cont’d)
(c) Share-based compensation (cont’d)

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options

are exercised.

(d) Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has

created a constructive obligation.

(e) Pension obligations

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme regulated under
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORSO”) and AIA-JF Premium Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF”), collectively known
as (“Retirement Schemes”) which are available to
all employees. Contributions to the Retirement
Schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. The
Retirement Schemes cost charged to the consolidated
profit and loss account represents contributions paid

or payable by the Group to the Retirement Schemes.

The Group’s contributions to Retirement Schemes
are expensed as incurred. Contributions to the ORSO
scheme are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions. The assets of the
Retirement Schemes are held separately from those of
the Group in an independent fund administered by

third party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.18 Employee benefits (cont’d)

(f) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either: terminating the employment
of current employees according to a detailed formal
plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after balance sheet date are

discounted to present value.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision

due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B ¥ R B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 T ZL 5l BORHHZ (4])

2.20 Contingent liabilities 2.20 R AR 10
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises R B RSB RS B VBT
from past events and whose existence will only be FAL > HAFER G Aol i HAR —
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 8% 2 4 I A 45 18] BT R 52 4 44 il
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Z AN E A 2 BB A T YR
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation H oMb SR A E IR BE R R
arising from past events that is not recognised because ARG Bz A B TS
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources 4 B PR oK R A S R S e A
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be A% B R Bk B AT 2 KEF R BB LA AT
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised 58 07 A B R AR - AR A
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial EANTHERR > EEEZEGIRE 2
statements. When a change in the probability of an B 5 TR B 58 o A0 R B K IE S M 2
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then A] REVEA 55 L BT B B ROE
be recognised as a provision. 3o Rl B R 2 A o

2.21 Operating lease 2.21 BE AL
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and A A RE B B R A7 JL g A
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are o] % ey R FH AR B > RIAr B
classified as operating leases. Payments made under A o ARARE A B S AT R K
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the TH (0B B H A AR 2 AT {0 £
lessor) are charged to the consolidated profit and loss Jih 4 4% ) A AR B A T DL AR AE
account on a straight-line basis over the period of the SREEM R
lease.
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the HEEREESEMRE A BE
asset is included in the balance sheet based on the nature REEABEREZEEEEA
of the asset. HE o

2.22 Revenue recognition 2.22 WA T i
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration Wi i i A 2R 1 L 78 TS B R AR
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services o MRS Y L i Bk R i
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue FRAB Y A T {H - 0 4 7E 11 BR 35 (E
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and 3 == I E I B RS & )
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group. B 2 9] O S B AR S AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.22 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each

arrangement.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered at customers’ premises which is taken
to be the point in time when customers have accepted the

goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership.

Revenue from sale of services is recognised in the

accounting period in which the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.

Rental income from investment properties is recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account in equal

instalments over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B ¥ R B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d) 2 o Bk BOR B (4H)
2.23 Dividend distribution 2.23 It B 4 Ik

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

2.24 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date the financial derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The fair
value is determined based on the market prices in active
markets including recent market transactions or valuation
techniques using discounted cash flow and options pricing
models, as appropriate. For derivative instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair value are
recognised immediately in cost of sales in the consolidated

profit and loss account.
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2.25 Share capital 2.25 AR
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. e A S S 2 o
3 W e
3.1 W5 B R

3 Financial Risk Management

3.1 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial

instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

Under the Group’s risk management program, each
department identifies and documents their key tasks
and the risk associated with their tasks. The risks are
summarized in a risk assessment program where they
are graded by likelihood and consequences and where
the procedures and controls for management risks are

recorded.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

,w< ﬁ%%%i%ﬂﬁhf

3 WH ML BE AT B (&)
3.1 WE B EE (4)

3 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(a) Market risk (a) P57 B
(i)  Foreign exchange risk () 2 FE S5
The operation of the Group is exposed to foreign A AR K 2 22 Tl A [
exchange risk arising from various currency B W AR T A B LB o
exposures. Foreign exchange risk arises from A1 HE B B8 I R 2k e 3

future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. To mitigate risks arising from
fluctuations in exchanges rates, forward foreign
exchange contracts are used to monitor the

currency exposure of the Group.

The Group’s risk management policy is to
monitor the anticipated cash flows (mainly
purchase of merchandise and inventory) in each
major foreign currency for the subsequent 12
months. Forward foreign exchange contracts
are generally used to hedge the purchase costs

relating to confirmed orders.

At 31 December 2008, if the HK dollar had
weakened/strengthened by 3% against the
Euro with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$1,217,000 (2007: HK$1,370,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of Euro-denominated
cash and cash equivalents and foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of Euro-denominated
trade payables offset by gains/losses on derivative
financial instruments at fair value through profit

or loss.

Lo BHERREEMA
R DL R i S 36755 19 4 £
o [ WK ME A< 5 BY By
e A B el By o A 4 I il
JRIE AN HE 5 4 B 4
18 L B -

A% A (3] 1) JE B B B
=B R AR 128 H A fE
FEINEN R B AR
i (FE ARG R P
KA 8]) o B A0 IE
& A2 v O R T
B ) B AR o

W oEFEENFE+F A
=+—H B0 i
WX ot Bz EH  FH{E3%
1M T A Hoth R R AR A
s > JI 5% 48 BE 1) bR B A
i A FE & > T &)
W5 11,217,000 (—FE
LA 4% %1,370,000
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3 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(a) Market risk (cont’d)

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (cont’d)

At 31 December 2008, if the HK dollar had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
RMB with all other variable held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$1,937,000 (2007: HK$2,097,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of RMB-denominated
trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents

and trade payables.

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to price risk is considered
insignificant. Investments held by the Group
represent unlisted club debentures, which are
classified in the consolidated balance sheet as

available-for-sale.

(iii) Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, except for certain short-
term bank deposits. The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially

independent of changes in market interest rates.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit

risk. The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from

cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial

instruments, as well as credit eéxposures to customers.

The Group has policies that limit the amount of

credit exposure to any financial institution. All bank

deposits are made at reputable financial institutions.
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e P BS ¥ R B R

3 W B A B (&)
3.1 WE B E R (4)
(b) 7€M BE (4)

3 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(b) Credit risk (cont’d)

The Group manages its exposure to derivative
counter-parties by taking into account their financial
strength and are limited to high-credit-quality

financial institutions.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of goods and services are provided to customers with
an appropriate credit history. The Group’s credit
control team assesses each of the Group’s individual
customers and determines the respective credit limits
based on, among other factors, the trading and
settlement history and the financial background of

each individual customer.

(¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and making available an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit

lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve. All trade payables and
customers’ deposits as at 31 December 2008 and
2007 are expected to be settled within one year. The
impact of discounting is not significant on the basis

of expected cash flow.
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3 Financial Risk Management (cont’d) 3 W B AY B ()
3.1 Financial risk management (cont’d) 3.1 B s e R & ()
(c) Liquidity risk (cont’d) (c) B EEHMBE ()
The table below analyses the Group’s derivative T FREUR A SR [ DL AR R
financial instruments that will be settled on a gross AR ASm TR 1)t
basis less than 1 year based on the remaining period Tl ¥ BEAH B 2 AL A - AR
at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity BHAEREH 2543 AE K
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the ol 5 WA [ HEAT 70 B - TER I
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due I 58 10 5 B B B AR SR B B
within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the R B8 4 WL R o R S B AG
impact of discounting is not significant. BN > SO AE 1218 A A F|

S B0 A5 R A S S LR T (-

2008 2007
RN ZERELE
Group HKS$’000 HK$°000
BT st T T
Forward foreign exchange contracts: = B AN 5 £
Outflow Ui 66,418 114,233
Inflow WA 62,376 116,772
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 %4 B 4E Bl
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AL E WG & T HBUR B
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going S E AR AR A s DU S IROR AR fit
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to [] 2 RN B A ) %5 o () R A0 4 e A
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of )& S &5 R DL U B AR o
capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, By T HERP BRGNS > AR
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to B 7] B € B SR IROR Y RS,
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new BUAE - BE1T 0 Bl A DA
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. RAEHS -
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3 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (cont’d)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current
and non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated

balance sheet, plus net debt.

The Group maintained no bank borrowing and zero
gearing as at 31 December 2008 and 2007.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as trading and available-for-sale financial
assets) is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price; the
appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is

the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices
or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-
term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted
cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments. The fair value of forward
foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward

exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of
trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate

their fair values.
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mE

S 15l R B

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

(o)

Impairment of assets

The Group conducts impairment reviews of assets when
events of changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable or annually
in accordance with relevant accounting standards. An
impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount
of an asset is lower than the greater of its net selling
price or the value in use. In determining the value in use,
management assess the present value of the estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use
of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful
life. Estimates and judgements are applied in determining

these future cash flows and the discount rate.

Impairment of receivables

The impairment of receivables is assessed based on
the evaluation of the collectibility and aging analysis,
including the creditworthiness and the collection history
of each customer. Judgement is required when assessing

the realisability of these receivables.

Estimates of fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group are revalued
at the balance sheet date on market value basis by
independent professional valuers. Such valuations are
based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and may differ from the actual results. In
making the judgement, the Group considers information
from current prices in an active market for similar
properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on

market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(cont’d)

(d) Income taxes

(e)

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

period in which such determination is made.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is
determined on a market value basis by the derivative
counter-parties. Certain assumptions used in the valuation
are based on market conditions existing at the balance
sheet date, which are subject to uncertainty and may differ

from the actual results.
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5 BEE LKA RSBER

5 Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment Information

The principal activities of the Group are (i) trading, (ii)
manufacturing and export and (iii) retail and renovation
operations. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set

out in note 19 of the consolidated financial statements.

AEHTFERKERFEOE S  )EE
Bt 1 B (i) T K B ETS - [ B
YNGIPAESE 37 1 Y Sl U T
T k19 ©

2008 2007
ZRE)N\AE ZEELAF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T oo
Turnover = EH
Sales of inventories SHEREIA 418221 ¢ 3 78771970747 B
Other revenues HoAth gie A
Interest income from bank deposits A B 8RAT A K
Z F B A 1,506 1,540
Administration fee received from the 1) W 2 F) AL X
associates (note 34(a)) ZATE A
(B 5E34(a) ) - 1,261
Gross rental income from investment HEWHEZ
properties ME WA 358 883
Sundry income e TR A 2,227 1,904
. ?,7079717 I 751578787 -
Total revenues A A 422,312 393,492

The analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by

business and geographical segment is set out below.

Primary reporting format — business segments
Other operations of the Group mainly comprise holding of
investment properties and other properties, neither of which

are of a sufficient size to be reported separately.

Sales between segments are conducted at prices and terms
determined based on mutual negotiations and agreements

between the parties.
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Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment Information
(cont’d)

Primary reporting format — business segments (cont’d)
Segment assets consist primarily of investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, lease prepayments, investments
in associates, inventories, trade and other receivables and
derivative financial instruments. Unallocated assets comprise
deferred income tax assets, current income tax, available-for-

sale financial assets and cash and cash equivalents.

Segment liabilities comprise trade and other payables and
derivative financial instruments and provisions. Unallocated
liabilities comprise deferred income tax liabilities and current

income tax liabilities.

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments
The operation of the business is mainly carried in three main
geographical areas, (i) Hong Kong and Macau, (ii) Mainland

China and (iii) Overseas.

Primary reporting format — business segments

e B W R I AR

GES Y VY i higs
(#1)

GRS VERES e XE )
SPEREE EE AR RAYE - W
Tt St ~ R TR 0 o 4 )
B A7 B S B 5 HLA R O B A
He G TR, o R4 B B R T
9B Y0~ S0 A5 T o ] O
At B A LA B S B
Y

or i A LA B S B At T A A
R TR D R - R Bl R R
5 R 5E T 15 B A B B A B B

fi -
KL WG — oy B

A = AR B A G)F
KR ~ (i) WP B A | R (ki) 1 T o

HHEERGT R -EH LB

Manufacturing Retail and Other
Trading and export renovation operations Unallocated Total
$U LTy ZEREE Fof 8 AAR ik
2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008
ZERNE ZERNE ZERNE ZERNE “ERNE ZERNE
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

T w T # T T T T

Total segment turnover o i 45 4R A 260,072 128,581 73,527 - - 462,180
Inter-segment turnover 3 T8 1 AL (59) (43,900) - - - (43,959)
260,013 84,681 73,527 - - 418,221
Segment results and AIEE R
operating profits A 28,710 6,608 12,571 (3,764) (20,040) 24,085
Finance costs 2R (93)
Profit before income tax W o 45 5 i e A1) 23,992
Income tax expense 3t (2,079)
Profit attributable to P 5 A 35 A
shareholders 21,913
Segment assets s 83,052 56,890 26,483 68,603 80,579 315,607
Segment liabilities R AR (49,450) (14,0000 (16,642 (747) (5,121)  (85,960)
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5 Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment Information

5 BEE LKA RSBER

92 ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED % # # & 45 B 2 7]

(cont’d) (%)
Primary reporting format — business segments (cont’d) CEES VERSES 2ig N )
Segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to consolidated mEEE AR EE KA K
assets and liabilities as follows: BERT
Assets Liabilities
¥ e £ 1
Segment assets/liabilities rEEE A 235,028 (80,839)
Unallocated: R4 HL
Deferred tax I JIE T 159 B0 = (226)
Current tax 1 R 1 -
Available-for-sale financial assets Al B R 2,787 -
Cash and cash equivalents e KRB E&%5EY 77,108 -
Others HAth 683 (4,895)
Total A 315,607 (85,960)
Manufacturing Retail and Other
Trading and export renovation operations Unallocated Total
H5% AR FEREE Jefb B A ik
2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008
ZERNE RN\ “ERNE “ERNE ZERN\E ZERNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
EHT I EWTI EWTL BT T EHTI
Capital expenditure A B S (278) (1,201) (7,636) (656) - (9,771)
Other non-cash expenses RSN
Depreciation of property, ERY: YT
plant and equipments & (261) (1,419) (804) (1,322) - (3,806)
Amortisation of lease R 5 T8 A5F 2 B
prepayments - (87) - (962) - (1,049)
Provision for impairment JRE WS e (B 4% 1
of receivables - (376) - - - (376)
Write back of provision JRE WS e (B 435 A
for impairment of T[]
receivables 376 - - - - 376
Provision for stock IR B
obsolescence (115) (321) (57) - - (493)
Provision for long service = IR 4 B A
payments (429) (46) (102) (240) - (817)
Provision for employee 1 5 1 = i 09
leave entitlements A (63) (105) (30) 3 - (195)
Gain on disposal of an HEREYE
investment property g - - - 94 - 94
Employee share-based 1R 5 IR =5 I A
compensation benefits FHE 2 A - - - (568) - (568)
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e B W R I AR

Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment Information

(cont’d)

Primary reporting format — business segments (cont’d)

(%)

5 BEE LKA RSBER

HRERITX B (H)

Manufacturing Retail and Other
Trading and export renovation operations Unallocated Total
B AERHD FEREE R FoE Bk
2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
“ERLE ZERLE “ERLE “ERLE “ERLE ZERLE
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
ok ok T T Wl T ok
Total segment turnover J3 S 5 A 242,430 115,699 68,008 - - 426,137
Inter-segment turnover G i LVE (857) (37,376) - - - (38,233)
241,573 78,323 68,008 - - 387,904
Segment results and Vil B0

operating profits A8 1 A 18,873 5,869 12,768 (203) (19,040) 18,267
Finance costs 5 %2 (1406)
Share of loss of an associate M} Hii & /> ] Jbs 18 (1,101)
Profit before income tax B BT £ 4 Al 36 17,020
Income tax expense P 15 i (215)

Profit attributable to PR 5 A 35 A
shareholders 16,805
Segment assets s 95,432 52,621 19,994 76,684 79,783 324,514
Segment liabilities AR (63,726) (15,426) (21,168) (949) (5794)  (107,063)

Segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to consolidated mEEE AR EE KAE
assets and liabilities as follows: BHRWE :
Assets Liabilities
<93 15
Segment assets/liabilities NI ERE Ak 244,731 (101,269)
Unallocated: FA B :
Deferred tax I SIE T 15 B0 1,000 (214)
Current tax A T A B - (292)
Available-for-sale financial assets Al Ik A B RS 3,159 -
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KBS EHY 74,524 -
Others HoAth 1,100 (5,288)
Total Ek 324,514 (107,063)
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5 Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment Information 5 #8387 - AW A K 7 BiE B

(cont’d) (%)
Primary reporting format — business segments (cont’d) GREES VESRES Tz K¢ )
Manufacturing Retail and Other
Trading and export renovation operations Unallocated Total
B AERHD FELEE Hih % RO am
2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
“RRLE  CEBLE  CSELE  CRRLE  BELE  C3ELS
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

BEFE  BNTR BEFR #%Tx BEFR B%Tx

Capital expenditure BB L (82) (1,304) (191) (1,140) - (2,717)
Other non-cash expenses oAt 2 B 4 B S
Depreciation of property, P12 BEE R

plant and equipments BB (282) (1,358) (882) (1,248) - (3,770)
Amortisation of lease R B T A S B

prepayments = (87) - (962) = (1,049)
Provision for impairment AT B 8¢

of receivables (484) = = = = (484)
Write back of provision WK B B 8¢

for impairment of  Jm]

receivables 527 - - - - 527
Provision for stock IR

obsolescence 28 (1,708) (10) = = (1,690)
Write back of provision A B

for stock obsolescence [l 94 - - - - 94
Write back of provision for = IR %5 4 4

long service payments ] 111 34 35 95 = 275
Provision for employee 1 B e = e

leave entitlements A (196) (60) (40) (64) - (360)
Gain on disposal of an HEREY*

investment property & - - - 439 - 439
Gain on disposal of an o B T

associate NGilE - - = 2,667 - 2,667
Employee share-based 1 B e == i 1

compensation benefits ah #2248 Al - = = (386) = (386)
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5 Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment Information

(cont’d)

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

e

S 5 i 3R T

5 BEE LKA RSBER

(#0)

K5 X — 4y

Capital
Tarnover ~ Segment results Total assets expenditure
BEH Vig. E3 % N 52
2008 2008 2008 2008
ZEENAE ZEENAE ZEZNAE “ERNE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EWT L 8T T L T L
Hong Kong and Macau s R 294,826 64,782 151,977 1,155
Mainland China o e [ 3 38,714 10,248 68,568 8,555
Overseas HEZ]N 84,681 24,697 14,483 61
418,221 99,727 9,771
Unallocated costs 773 e B AR (75,642)
Operating profit R 78 Ui | 24,085
Unallocated assets Fo Bl G E 80,579
Total assets MG R 315,607
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5 Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment Information

5 BEE LKA RSBER

(cont’d) (%)
Secondary reporting format — geographical segments KR 5 — b4y %8 (4)
(cont’d)
Capital
Turnover Segment results Total assets expenditure
e AR MG BB
2007 2007 2007 2007
ZERLAE SERELF SERELE SRELE
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
i o T i T i abTH i o T
Hong Kong and Macau 7 SR 282,803 54,914 174,302 1,437
Mainland China Hh ] A b 26,778 7,176 58,037 1,280
Overscas ¥ Ah 78,323 23,180 12,392 -
387,904 85,270 2,717
Unallocated costs H 43 e AR (67,003)
Operating profit 2878 e A 18,267
Unallocated assets KA EE 79783
Total assets BB E 324,514
6 Cost of Sales 6 S AR
2008 2007
ZREN\AE CERELAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Wl T L T oo
Cost of inventories sold B B A 311,306 302,063
Cost of consumable inventories HFEAF B AR 3,062 2,965
Depreciation of property, plant and ERR S G LR
equipment 84 145
Net unrealised fair value loss/(gain) fitem TR
on derivative financial instruments *i B FE
18, (BA) 4,042 (2,539)
318,494 302,634
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e B W R I AR

7 Operating Expenses 7 REWX

2008 2007
ZRENA ke 22 2 ok S
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T
Administrative expenses: freg A
Employee benefit expenses (note 9) & & & A Bl %
(B &E9) 43,449 38,020
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) w4 (Misk10) 7,987 7,442
Depreciation of property, UESR £33
plant and equipment BRI 3,722 3,625
Amortisation of lease prepayments FH 5 A5 R4 1,049 1,049
Operating lease rentals on properties MEFEMNE=FZ
paid to third parties LA 4,635 3,654
Travelling expenses iR 2,572 2,959
Entertainment expenses T 785 1,126
Management fee EIA X 1,440 1,440
Stamps, postage and telephone TSR~ W K A 1,040 878
Auditor’s remuneration A% BT Y < 1,903 1,649
Legal and professional fees VA T B I s 693 2,856
Advertising & promotion expenses JBE A R i 216 474
69,491 65,172
Other operating expenses: oA 58 78 BH 3
Write back of provision for R s 0 (L 92 A
impairment of receivables 13 1] (376) (527)
Provision for impairment of IR W (L 93 A
receivables 376 484
Werite back of provision for stock IR A7 B 1A
obsolescence ] - (94)
Provision for stock obsolescence 08 IR A7 B 493 1,690
Provision for long service payments 12 0 R 85 4 18 817 (275)
Provision for employee leave g B e == {B
entitlements A 195 360
Loss on disposal of property, 3 B
plant and equipment %M < e 1R 2 8
Exchange difference iR R (32) 14
Sundry expenses A TE BH 5¢ 8,861 8,865
10,336 10,525
79,827 75,697
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8 Finance Costs 8 WMEERM
2008 2007
ZRE)N\AE ZEELF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
W T T oo
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts SRATIB A BB 93 146
9 Employee Benefit Expenses 9 @ H A A B 3¢
2008 2007
ZEZZNAE BB LA
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T L wHT T
Wages and salaries T T 3 41,883 36,318
Termination benefits il 11 i 1E 106 109
Contributions to ORSO scheme FERUN I R
(note 11) (FiEE1D) 885 1,027
Contributions to MPF scheme o B 4wt E k3K
(note 11) (F$EE11) 562 531
Employee share-based compensation & B 1 == B A i s 8 22
benefits (note 29) A (B EE29 ) 13 35
43,449 38,020
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e B W R I AR

10 Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments 10 EHEHHEEMA R4

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) HIW 4
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable MR 4% 7 8 20 w46 91 26 161 Ik 4 R
to directors pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong JEAT T 2 I & BT

Companies Ordinance is as follows:

2008 2007
“RENE ZRELAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Fees Ml 4 750 750
Salaries and other benefits o S HoAth AR A 5,596 5,221
Discretionary bonus 915 fE 4L 100 282
Year end bonus HERAEAL 497 427
Retirement Schemes contributions — #B 4K 4 51 & fit 3¢ 489 411
Employee share-based & B == Wi e RE 1 )
compensation benefits (note 29) & A (B EE29) 555 351
7,987 7,442
Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of 4 AL AE AN AR E R AT IR
HK$750,000 (2007: HK$750,000) paid to non-executive HITEBFEMBE AT ERZ2ME
directors and independent non-executive directors during AW HE750,00000 ( —FEFE LA 4
the year. #£750,0000T) ©
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10 Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments 10 EHEHHEEMA R4

(cont’d) (%)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (cont’d) (a) HPME (4)
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 BE_FFNFE+_H=+—H
December 2008 is set out below: WL B4 ERENM ST
Employee
share-based
Pension  compensation
scheme benefits Other 2008
Discretionary Yearend  contribution 73i) &2 benefits Total
Fee Salary bonus bonus WhkE RN inkind  “EFZAE
Name of Director 2 e L EA A8 A6 41 BRI il fkak ZHif HLfbHiH am

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
whTr WM T WX W Wl BRT W WX

Michael John Green Ko B - 1,669 - 139 167 - 119 2,094
Daniel George Green FHE o Bk - 1,309 - 198 178 509 576 2,770
Lai Ka Tak, Patrick BEH - 1,923 100 160 144 46 - 2,373
Augustus Ralph Marshall -~ Augustus Ralph Marshall 150 - - - - - - 150
Lim Ghee Keong R - - - - - - - -
Christopher John David il 253
Clarke 150 - - - - - - 150
V-Nee Yeh U 150 - - - - - - 150
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak [ 7 fi 150 - - - - - - 150
Simon Murray Btk R 150 - - - - - - 150
750 4,901 100 497 489 555 695 7,987
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 BE_FFZELHFE+_HA=+—H
December 2007 is set out below: WFE - BLAEREMEWT -
Employee

share-based
Pension  compensation

scheme benefits Other 2007

Discretionary Yearend  contribution [EEEF benefits Total

Fee Salary bonus bonus BIRE R inkind —ZFZLE

Name of Director fE3 g BE RfFIEAL FRIEA Eip (15 ZHf Holtu g Al A%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETE BETE  BWTR O BETx  BWTx  BETx  BWTx  B%Tx

Michael John Green Ko B = 1,669 = 139 167 - 310 2,285
Daniel George Green FE o Bk = 983 - 148 118 192 576 2,017
Lai Ka Tak, Patrick R - 1,683 28 140 126 159 - 2,390
Augustus Ralph Marshall ~ Augustus Ralph Marshall 150 - - - - - - 150
Lim Ghee Keong 9T = = = = = = = =

Christopher John David il 23
Clarke 150 - - - - - - 150
V-Nee Yeh ik 150 - - - - - - 150
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak ~ [175 {8 150 - - - - - - 150
Simon Murray HitR 150 - - - = = = 150
750 4,335 282 427 411 351 886 7,442
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10 Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments 10 HHEHBATHAHBZHE

(cont’d) (%)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) hfrEmMeZ AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, i a N = (=
three (2007: three) were directors whose emoluments FELF - Z)EF HEZ
are disclosed in note (a) above. The highest emoluments M 4 A b SCHE 5E (a) 3 55 o 4R
payable to the remaining two (2007: two) individuals W EAT B WA (ZF R L
during the year is as follows: L) Fem A N LR
2008 2007
RN ZEELE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT st T T
Salaries and other benefits i S HoAth A A 1,728 1,795
Discretionary bonus 9 5 fE 4L 1,449 434
Year end bonus HERAEAL 144 152
Retirement Schemes contributions — #B 4K 4 51 # fit 3¢ 150 76
3,471 2,457
The emoluments of the two (2007: two) individuals with W (—FFELE WAL &5
the highest emoluments are within the following band: RPN A o TR N
Number of individuals
A ¥
2008 2007
Emoluments’ band T <6 2 i 13 BN —EFELE
HKS$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000  # %1,000,0017C
— ¥ %1,500,0007C - 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 #5%1,500,0017C
—#%2,000,0007C 2 =
The Group usually determines and pays discretionary AREEE W NFFEL— A ARE
bonuses to employees (including directors) around A 2 E PR A 2E AR AR P E TR
January/February each year based on the actual fHMEEA TIEE (BiE#EF)
financial results of the Group for the preceding year. R & ol B 4 8 B A 4F BB R S A
The discretionary bonuses shown above therefore TRE (BiEES) AR —FEE
represent actual payments to the employees (including BRI E 4L

directors) during the current financial year in relation to

performance for the preceding year.
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11

12

A B 3R B 5 E

Retirement Schemes

The Group’s contributions to the ORSO Scheme were reduced
by contributions forfeited on those employees who left the
ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Forfeited contributions totalling HK$326,000 (2007:
HK$81,000) were fully utilised during the year.

Contributions of HK$283,000 (2007: HK$268,000) were

payable to the Retirement Schemes at the year-end.

Income Tax Expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

11

12

AR 453

i 48 B i AT 4 SRS A R R AR AR
AR 51 3] > R A3 55 e 3 e 2 4t i
FAVE AR A B 2 3K o B3R ik 2 it
A S ¥326,00000 (—FEFE L
A ) s 181,00000) & FPE A F A
B -

T WHT%LM(%%*HZ@%@
#) s 95283,0000C (- LA AU
#268,0007T) ©

e
ZISETEZF@?%B?’%%EE?JMHWE%%
i i ) 42 75 s T 15 B %16.5% (
FLF 1 17.5% ) MEFE A o 105N A B
TE T AR PR A AE B N 22 A R RE SR Vi
FlIFE A LB RS ERE T ERRZE
FBLRFLA -

—-?

Income tax expense in the consolidated profit and loss account REZZGBEGERT ZERT
represents:
2008 2007
ZRENF —ZFTEE
HK$°000 HK$’000
wEW T T T
Current income tax AR ) S B g 2~
— Hong Kong profits tax —HEMGH 126 468
— Overseas taxation — i S P IH 941 958
Deferred income tax (note 30) A8 SE P A5 B (B E30) 1,012 (1,211)
2,079 215
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Income Tax Expense (cont’d)

A B 2R MY 5 E

»vj?

12 P8t (&)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of

the home country of the Company as follows:

A AE [ A B BR B AT i A 2 B IE B AR
5\ DAAS kB R a0 B e 4 AE 0
Rz T :

2008 2007
RN ZEELE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
Profit before income tax I T 15 0 i Ja ) 23,992 17,020
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% Bl %16.5% (2007:
(2007: 17.5%) 17.5%) wt 5 2 BiIA 3,959 2,979
Effect of different taxation rates in HAh B R AR BLR 2
other countries - 312 (239)
Effect of income not subject to tax MJHERBL Z A (106) (576)
Expenses not deductible for tax AN AT SR TE 1 R 1) B 52
purposes 429 432
Tax loss for which no deferred income 1% F il 52 4% 4E fT 15 B
tax asset was recognised & MR 1,574 1,760
Utilisation of previously unrecognised il i L R A AR 2 BLAR
tax losses (5,140) (2,930)
Recognition of previously unrecognized 58 - il A ffE 58 2 BiIH
temporary differences IR 2 24 (211)
Remeasurement of deferred tax T Rl R R A B E
— change in Hong Kong tax rate — T B R s (12) =
Adjustment in respect of prior years WUAE 4F AT ) A0 o 39 -
Recognition of previously unrecognised R FL R A R 2 Bl AR
tax losses - (1,000)
Utilisation of previously recognised i 1) FL AT 2 MERR 2 B4R
tax losses 1,000 =
Income tax expense EEYih 2,079 215

Profit Attributable to Shareholders

13

The profit actributable to shareholders includes a profit of
HK$12,600,000 (2007: profit of HK$9,475,000) which has

been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

JB& S ME A ¥t A

JE B A 3 R EL 81 AR 2 R B RS
F N B A 512,600,000 7T Y Y Al
(=LA 4 %9,475,00070 1Y
it A1)
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S 15l R B

mE

14 Earnings per Share

(a)

(b)

(o)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of HK$21,913,000 (2007: Group’s profit attributable
to ordinary shareholders of HK$16,805,000) and
the weighted average number of 225,296,000 (2007:
224,951,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of HK$21,913,000 (2007: Group’s profit attributable
to ordinary shareholders of HK$16,805,000) and
the weighted average number of 231,374,000 (2007:
230,974,000) ordinary shares after adjusting for the effects

of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Reconciliation

14 A

(a)

(b)

(o)

9 JB B A 24 A

B I 3 A 2 R T AR B AN 4R [ AR
A A I s R A0 v A A s
21,913,0007C ( = F & L 4F :
A4 B 2 % R R S T
FI| % #5 #516,805,00070) K 4F A
B 47 % M 2 R T 1 B
225,296,000 M (= FF L4
224,951,000/%) 5F & -

9 B 3 W 2 A

T 8 T R U AR 9 A 4R [ AR
A A I s R A0 v A A s
21,913,0007C ( = F & L 4F :
A A [ 2 5 v R A R A s A
#1 5y ¥ %516,805,00000 ) M &8 5k
JIt A5 Y AE 35 3 i 2 8 39 0 RE A
AR AR 2 S i T 35 B
231,374,000 ( = FF L4
230,974,000/%) 7 o

S )

2008 2007
“RENE ZRELAE
Number of shares Number of shares
By ¥ H &y ¥ B
Weighted average number Ve R 5 I 5 A 2 )
of ordinary shares used in F14) 3L 40 o A T 2
calculating basic earnings
per share 225,296,000 224,951,000
Deemed issue of ordinary shares X E AT I IR HE 2
relating to share options 78 6,078,000 6,023,000
Weighted average number of R AR R B9 I 48 v 4 )
ordinary shares used in F14) 3L 408 o A T 2
calculating diluted earnings
per share 231,374,000 230,974,000
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e B W R I AR

15 Proposed Dividend 15 Akl B
A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2008 AERNAE=ZHZFNHEHEH
of HK$0.055 per share, amounting to a total dividend of FRRRESRE T NANE+_H
HK$12,391,000, is proposed on 26 March 2009, which is =t—HIEFEEZRMAKE RS
subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting to be held Ji 3 4 s ¥50.055 70 & 3L A4 s
on 14 May 2009. This proposed dividend is not reflected as 12,391,0007C ° M55 B B i —FE
a dividend payable in these consolidated financial statements, JUE R A V0 H B AT 2 R AR
but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings o & S SRHEAZ o R AR A B R
for the year ended 31 December 2008. EHE _FFNEF+_A=1+—H

1h 45 BE 2 A5 S S ik 3R I ik L T
R, - R it 485 A0 e 7y £ B 1 B

Z M o
A dividend that relates to the year ended 31 December 2007 CEELET+ A=t —HIEERE
and amounts to HK$9,913,000 was paid in May 2008. Z B > &2k ¥9,913,0000C - E R
— BB R

2008 2007

RN ZERELE

HK$’000 HK$’000

T st T T

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.055 R VR R A S A
(2007: HK$0.044) per ordinary share 4 s %70.055 70
(ZEE LA
0.0447T) 12,391 9,913
16 Investment Properties 16 &YX
The Group
A4

2008 2007

“RENA ZERELE

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT W

At 1 January w—H—H 9,850 14,750

Disposal fael == (6,509) (4,900)

At 31 December Bt+=_HA=+—H 3,341 9,850
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16 Investment Properties (cont’d)
The investment properties are held under long-term leases
and are situated in the PRC. The investment properties
were revalued as at 31 December 2008 on the basis of its
open market value by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Ltd, an

independent firm of qualified property valuers.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had no unprovided

contractual obligation for future repairs and maintenance.

The Group’s interest in investment properties at their net book

16 B¥WE (&)

BT A Y SEAR R B
il - EYRC R _FFNE+
H=+—HhB&%WEFME L
R W PE AT A RS w L2 B T 5 {H

(B 5 HE AT FL A -

MEFFNELZA=+—H > A&
@ﬁ&ﬁ&ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁ

AR & H BAE -

7 B2 B TE £ 6 W) 36 0 HE A 4 LR T

values are analysed as follows: FESHT T
The Group
A 4 [
2008 2007
ZRENAE TEE LA
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T wHT 0
Outside Hong Kong, held on: TEFWLIINEEA

Leases of between 10 to 50 years 104F 2504 Z 1 4 3,341 9,850

During the year 2008, the Group disposed of an investment
property in Shanghai and a gain of HK$94,000 was credited to

the consolidated profit and loss account.
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AR B ¥R I AR

16 Investment Properties (cont’d) 16 BEWE (H)
During the year 2007, the Group disposed of an investment T B AR > AL HE—TEA
property in Guangzhou and a gain of HK$439,000 was AN 2 &Y 2 B 8439,000
credited to the consolidated profit and loss account. Tt HEREYHEINECF AR
Hig RN -
The Group
A 4 [
2008 2007
ZRE)NAE CEE LA
HK$’000 HK$000
T wHT 0
Net book value of investment e EREY £
property held for sale Z MR 6,509 4,900
Add: Gain on disposal of i EREYE
an investment property I #i 94 439
Net cash consideration B4 R8T R 6,603 5,339
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17 Property, Plant and Equipment 17 % ~ A% Bt i
Furniture Plant
Leasehold Leasehold and and Motor
building imp quipment machinery vehicles Total
The Group AEH fEmE  AEERKE TR RO B a8t i L W
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

BT T T Wl T BT T

At 1 January 2007 R_FFLE
—HA—H
Cost A 44,837 16,987 29,764 17,446 1,448 110,482
Accumulated depreciation g (8,599) (15,061) (27,971) (13,276) (692) (65,599)
Net book value IR TR V3 36,238 1,926 1,793 4,170 756 44,883
Year ended WE_ZELE
31 December 2007 +-H=+—H
JIo: 553
Opening net book value 0900 % 1 (L 36,238 1,926 1,793 4,170 756 44,883
Additions RE 697 174 1,443 403 - 2,717
Depreciation ik (910) (1,121) (759) (695) (285) (3,770)
Written off/disposals s/ - (5) (18) = - (23)
Closing net book value J) 45 B TR 438 (L 36,025 974 2,459 3,878 471 43,807
At 31 December 2007 WEFELE
+-HA=1+—H
Cost A 45,534 16,512 31,164 17,849 1,448 112,507
Accumulated depreciation  BFHT (9,509) (15,538) (28,705) (13,971) 977) (68,700)
Net book value R THT ¥ {1 36,025 974 2,459 3,878 471 43,807
Year ended BE_FZZNE
31 December 2008 +-H=+—H
14
Opening net book value 0400 B i 36,025 974 2,459 3,878 471 43,807
Additions NE = 259 8,738 774 = 9,771
Depreciation i (894) (577) (1,310) (745) (280) (3,806)
Written off/disposals s/ e - - 3) - - (3)
Closing net book value A 4R T 35,131 656 9,884 3,907 191 49,769
At 31 December 2008 e Y\
+-H=+—H
Cost A 45,534 16,771 39,786 18,612 1,448 122,151
Accumulated depreciation R FHTH (10,403) (16,115) (29,902) (14,705) (1,257) (72,382)
Net book value W e ¥+ £ 35,131 656 9,884 3,907 191 49,769
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17 Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)

All property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2008 and

31 December 2007 of the Group is stated at cost.

18 Lease Prepayments

The Group’s lease prepayments represent interests in leasehold

land and land use rights under operating lease and their net

book values are analysed as follows:

e B W R I AR

17 3 - BE3 Bt (&)
L IN D S A
=+ —HILEE ST HEs Ak
i 32 RS 1 B o

18 M & WAt
AEBENHEHEMROHELS HHE
-l Ko - M A5 R R > LR T (E AT
R

The Group
7 4 [
2008 2007
ZRE)NAE ZERELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Wl T L wHT o
In Hong Kong, held on: EFEBRA
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 104 E504F 2 14 43,687 44,648
Outside Hong Kong, held on: TE/ U IANES ¢
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 104F S04 Z &) 4,150 4,238
47,837 48,886
The Group
A H
2008 2007
ZREN\AE SR LAF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
W T BT oo
Net book value at 1 January A —H— H Z MR FE 48,886 49,935
Amortisation 4 5 (1,049) (1,049)
Net book value at 31 December AT+ H=+—H2
R T ¥ L 47,837 48,886
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18 ML H ATk (&)
MZFEE)NE+ZH=+—H > K4
2 Mg A R A Y EC IR A
WITERT O EEREERF

18 Lease Prepayments (cont’d)
At 31 December 2008, a property held by a subsidiary of
the Group was pledged to a bank to obtain banking facilities

including issue of shipping guarantee, trust receipt loan,

purchase of export bills and opening of documentary credit. AR K M A O SR RS
% o
The Group
A4 B
2008 2007
ZERENE “ERLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T8 T T
Lease prepayments H & FAT K 40,683 41,568
Leaschold building N7 8,273 8,516
Net book value of property charged to 244 RITIE R K Z
bank to obtain banking facilities ) 3 A THD 1 (B 48,956 50,084

19 FJE 2 v B¢ ¥ B Wb 2 7 Rk

19 Investment in Subsidiaries and amount due from a
subsidiary

The Company

A2 ]
2008 2007
CREN\AE SERLF
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
T Fii ol e
Investments, at cost & AR 88,834 86,131
Advance to a subsidiary o g 2 i KK 105,015 105,449
193,849 191,580

The advance to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free, has no

fixed terms of repayment and is stated at cost.

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand, the carrying amount due from a
subsidiary approximates its fair value and is dominated in

Hong Kong dollars.
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19 Investment in Subsidiaries and amount due from a 19 BB A & $% K BB A 5] Rk

subsidiary (cont’d) (%)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 M oEEZ/NFE+_H=1T—H &R
December 2008: AT B8 A w2 RERE AR
Group equity
interest held by
ASEBE BT A Issued and paid
Place of O 5 I A i up ordinary
incorporation/ The share capital
Name of company operations Company Subsidiaries CHAT RS R Principal activities
A i3 ) S 3L AR WIg 2 WlkAk  REEH
% %
Anagram Company Limited British Virgin Islands - 100 US$1 Investment holding
SRR LS 1% BEER
Arnhold & Company, Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$20,000,000  Trading and engineering
LA RA &b #1520,000,0000  H5RTHE
Arnhold & Company (Shanghai) Shanghai - 100 US$200,000  Trading
Limited* i 20000067 H%
B b U 5
(L) fRRA R
Arnhold (B.V.I) Limited British Virgin Islands/ 100 - US$1,000  Investment holding
Hong Kong L000ETE  HEHER
RRBEABE /B
Arnhold China Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Inactive
LA B AR A i W WS
Arnhold Design Centres Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Retailing
ZHZBARA A i Bt FE
Arnhold Investments Limited Hong Kong - 100 Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
ZHBEARA A Fi Non-voting & G MK
deferred
HK$1,000,000
o s B 1
IEAE L

##1,000,0007C
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A B ¥ R B R

19 Investment in Subsidiaries and amount due from a 19 BB A &) $0% K BB A 5] Rk

subsidiary (cont’d) (%)
Group equity
interest held by
ALEHBERLT A Issued and paid
Place of O 4 I A i up ordinary
incorporation/ The share capital
Name of company operations Company Subsidiaries CHAT R SR Principal activities
VR RO, 3 AR W) & WA  REEH
% %
Arnhold (Macau) Limited Macau = 100 MOP25,000 Trading of construction
I (RM) AR 1M TR 25,000 materials
BEMHE S
Arnhold Marble China Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$12  Trading and
ZMERHEARR A ik W12t management services
B 5 R IR
Arnhold Marble Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Design and supply of
ZHERARLF R T natural stones
Bt R AR R A b
Arnhold Properties (B.V.I.) British Virgin Islands/ - 100 US$1  Property holding
Limited Hong Kong X% YERA
EBRLHE/FE
Bain d’Or Building Materials Hong Kong - 100 HKS$2 Inactive
Limited s ot EREE
ZEBEENHARRA
Bain d’Or Inc. United States of = 100 US$2,000 Inactive
America 2,0003 7T LEi3-$4
E3!
Bain d’Or Trading Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$1  Inactive
FELANARRA ik BT BREE
Dongguan Arnhold Marble Dongguan = 100  RMB 17,546,951 Natural stones
Limited* E NE¥17,546,951 processing
RS E M A RN KRAHML
Grandful Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Property investment
BREARA i HEL IV E $5 %0
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19 Investment in Subsidiaries and amount due from a
subsidiary (cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B W R I AR

(#0)

19 F S 2 v B¢ ¥ B Wb 2 7 Rk

Group equity
interest held by
AEMERPLT A Issued and paid
Place of O 5 I A i up ordinary
incorporation/ The share capital
Name of company operations Company Subsidiaries CHAT R SR Principal activities
AT i3 ) OS2 L] AR W 2 7 Wk  REEH
% %
Palatial Properties Limited British Virgin Islands/ - 100 US$1  Property holding
Hong Kong 1€ YR
KRR GRS/ B
Arnhold Sourcing Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$1  Trading and export of
LR HEA R A ik LT building materials
B0 R E R O
Elements Mosaics Designs Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Inactive
Limited i ot BREE
European Design Concept Hong Kong - 100 HKS$1 Inactive
Limited i BT BREE
AHL Services Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$1  Services for supply and
ik LT installation of marble
PERE B TR E A RS
AHL Stone Limited British Virgin Islands/ - 100 US$1  Trading and export of
Hong Kong 1% 7T marble product
KR GREE /B BEHREAERED
LS EE S AR A Shanghai = 100 RMB500,000  Retailing
L ARMs00000  FfE
*  Wholly-owned foreign enterprise, which is incorporated in Mainland A A B A A RS B A B R AT A T

China and is a limited liability company.

e
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)wi j¥§$&%§MTﬁE

20 Interest in Associates 20 W58 2 w) BE 4R
The Group
A E
2008 2007
ZRE)N\AE R
HK$’000 HK$000
W T bk o B
Share of net liabilities JE Ak £ 1 TF - -
Amount due from the associates R /NG - -
The Group’s interest in the associates all of which are unlisted, A AL B e W s A w) (JF BT ) B RE R
was as follows: W
Particulars of Country of

Name issued shares held incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit/(loss) Interest held
A4 FeAi CBAT IR Y YR 33 {3 fif KA #A (EHR) Hidi

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 %

BT BT BHT BT
Kingspan China 2,000 ordinary Hong Kong 182 (315) 192 5) 20

Limited* shares of i
f i A PR A HK$100 each
2,000/ & i v 100
62 %3 B A Ay

For the year ended 31 December 2007 182 (315) 192 (5)
REZZZLELZN=E4—HILEE
* Disposed on 11 January 2008. * M-FEENE—H+—HE

S BE A b R A

On 11 January 2008, the Group completed a share disposal

transaction in the capital of Kingspan China Limited (“KCL”), & L B A RR 2 F (T R A
an associate company in which the Group had a 20% equity B 1) (A 5 RF A 20% % HE ] 45 1Y
interest, whereby the Group transferred its entire interest i N ) By > FE UG AN 4 Y
represented by 2,000 ordinary shares in KCL to Kingspan A HL A [ P B R 2R 4 (B
Holdings (Insulation) Limited (formerly as Kooltherm i A B 4 % 172,000 ) T Kingspan
Holdings Limited) at a consideration of HK$1. Upon Holdings (Insulation) Limited ( BT 5
completion of the disposal, KCL is no longer an associate of Kooltherm Holdings Limited ) 1E 18 #%
the Group. As the Group’s share of cumulative post-acquisition ¥e170 o & SE BUAR - IR P B AT 4
movements in reserves of KCL is equal to the carrying amounts A B2 B 1O Bk A W) o | R A B2 T RE A
of its investment and there are no unsecured receivables upon FE] T v R oA I A 1 At AR 5 D A e A
disposal, a gain of HK$1 was credited to the consolidated R TN 45 [] A4S 4 3] % 3] 3L AP 12 35 & Y
profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2008. R THD Bt 65 1 3L v [ R > I 97

R ORE SRR o %mﬁ ks
1oz BB B d —EFE/NAFE 4
A=+—HIEFEHFAEEGEEANT
HE o
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20 Interest in Associates (cont’d) 20 BB A E BESR (4H)
On 23 July 2007, Arnhold & Company Limited (“ACL”), a W EEEFEELH +=H%HF|
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Deed HRAF (K72 E g A A )
with Bostik Australia Pty Ltd (“Bostik”) and Bostik Holding (% #]]) BdBostik Australia Pty Led.
Hong Kong (“Joint Venture” or Bostik HK”) in relation to ([ Bostik |) & Bostik Holding Hong
the termination of Joint Venture established by the Group Kong Limited ([ &% 2 A | 8 [ Bostik
and Bostik. It was agreed that the Group should transfer HK |) %% 1E %2 F| B Bostik 8 37 2
4,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each in the Joint Venture to GEN A FT LR PRI 2R
Bostik, Bostik in return paid the Group a sum of HK$11.4 Bostikii 778 H A & 8 28 7 N BT A A
million, which included the consideration for the transfer WE %5 > Bll4,000/8 4 B E(E #1022
of shares in the Joint Venture and the amount owned by the 78 I > T Bostik I ] % F| 32 A s W
Joint Venture to the Group. The disposal was completed on 1 11,400,0007C » ‘& ' (1 15 3 5 B A
August 2007, whereupon Bostik HK became wholly owned by A e f 2 AME B &8 A R A T 22 7l
Bostik and ceased to be an associate of the Group. A gain of ZAEHE - WERHON “FFLEN
HK$2,667,000 was credited to the consolidated profit and loss H—H5Em - #14%2,667,0007C 2
account for the year ended 31 December 2007. ElRmth _FEEFE+ A =+ —

H k4 AR A 1R i R N RHR -

The Group

AL H

2007

Disposal of an associate H B B 4 N ) TEE L
HK$’000

BT T

Share of net liabilities upon disposal it TR R A T N W) B R (2,864)
Amount due from associate Wit 45 N 7 R 3K 11,396
Net book value of associate held for sale Wit & N ml R AR B 2 MR T FHE 8,532
Net consideration received from disposal WERHE AR 2B & EFHE 11,199
Gain on disposal GRS 2,667
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21 Available-for-sale Financial Assets 21 W4l B 2 S
The Group
7 45

2008 2007

ZRENAE SRR LAF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T wHET o

At 1 January w—H—H 3,159 2,318
Net (deficit)/surplus transferred AL (KE18) BA

to reserves (Note 29) WP (B EE29) (372) 841

At 31 December wt+—_H=+—H 2,787 3,159

Available-for-sale financial assets represent the unlisted equity

securities and unlisted club debenture held by the Group, and

T {1 05 22 B E A S
FENEF A=t —HEATE

are stated at fair value at year ended 31 December 2008. IR F LT R E Rk B
FEESF -
22 Inventories 22 &
The Group
A 4 [
2008 2007
ZRZNAE CEE LA
HK$°000 HK$ 000
W T e wHT 0
Merchandise P il 9,947 11,309
Consumable inventories B E 4,477 4,399
Raw materials JE A R 5,824 5,074
Work in progress e 8 6,067 3,893
Finished goods 5E W 1,070 839
27,385 25,514

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$314,368,000 (2007:
HK$305,028,000). The Group has not reversed any part of
a previous write-down in value in December 2008 (2007:
HK$94,000). The amount reversed has been included in

operating expenses in the consolidated profit and loss account.
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23 Trade and Other Receivables

mE

S 5 i 3R T

23§ 5 B 30 fib I ek

The Group The Company
¥ L] AR
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZRENE ZERLF CERRNE ZERLAF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T W T 0 (iR P
Trade receivables JRE Wi & 5 Bk 93,454 103,779 - -
Retention receivables JE WS R BR 4 BR 3K 5,853 4,626 - =
Receivables from related JRE Wi B 7N - iR 3k
parties (note 34) (i 5E34) - 97 - -
Gross trade and retention JRE Wi B 5 Bk K
receivables JRE W BR 4 MR 99,307 108,502 - =
Less: provision for W B SR
impairment of BAE A
receivables (1,368) (1,368) - -
Net trade and retention JE i & 5 B 3k I
receivables JE Wi R B 45 T AR 97,939 107,134 - =
Prepayments and other T IR B HoAth
receivables JRE iz 2K 9,069 8,043 250 245
107,008 115,177 250 245

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables

approximate their fair values.

The Group normally allows a credit period ranging from 30
to 90 days. Debtors with balances that are long overdue are
normally requested to settle all outstanding balances before any

further credit is granted.

5 Ty B FL At JE i sk M T BELEL % oF
AR o

AL — A T 30 290K (9 A K >
WA T B AR R R > A R Y BB A
SATEHIT A R AR O AT AR T
HEA
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A B ¥ R B R

23 Trade and Other Receivables (cont’d)

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect

to trade receivables, as the Group has a large number of

customers.

The aging analysis of trade and retention receivables, net of

provisions, is as follows:

23 B 5 B S0 A HE WOk (%)

ALEBEARBERS > FUILE 5 ik
AR B LB I A 2

IR 188 1 1K B 2 B Wk % B i AR B
O S B 20 A A R

The Group
7 4 [

2008 2007

ZRE)N\AE SERELE

HK$’000 HK$ 000

Wl T L T oo

Current EN R 58,955 60,105

One to three months overdue WMy —MmAE=MA 33,947 35,713

Three to twelve months overdue =M A 2=+ WA 2,646 8,597

Overdue more than twelve months w8 A 2,391 2,719
Net trade and retention receivables JEE W — 5 B R I

JRE Wi fR B 4 v A 97,939 107,134

The trade and retention receivables include in the above aging

are considered not impaired as these relate to a number of

independent customers for whom there is no recent history

of default. All the impaired overdue trade and retention

receivables have been provided for. As at 31 December 2008,
trade and retention receivables of HK$1,368,000 (2007:
HK$1,368,000) were impaired and provided for.
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e B W R I AR

23 Trade and Other Receivables (cont’d)

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade

23 B 5 B S0 A HE WOk (%)
2 7 Wk B i R B < B (488 e

receivables are as follows: B -
The Group
7 45
2008 2007
ZRENAE SRR LAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT W T o
At 1 January w—H—H 1,368 3,039
Provision for receivable impairment R WS Dk (L 93 A 376 484
Receivables written off during N 51 /% R R U R Y

the year as uncollectible JFRE WAL 2 R £ - (1,628)
Unused amounts reversed JRE WA ek (L 438 A 435 [ (376) (527)
At 31 December it =—H=+—H 1,368 1,368

As at 31 December 2007 and 2008, other than the trade and

retention receivables as disclosed above, all other classes within

trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and retention

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

CFELERFENET A
S BRI 5
SRR B 51 2 BN B 5 PRk
S B I 07 A7 A 5
76 ) (7

A 52 ) Y B Wi B T B R I B AR T
< FO) MR THT B0 DA T 91 B B

The Group
A4 1

2008 2007
ZRENE SEBELAE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
W T 0 s W T 70
HKD i 60,951 80,762
RMB NGL 17,496 18,649
MOP TR [ 5,037 2,824
USD EVIn 11,988 6,267
Other currencies HoAth & 5 3,835 -
99,307 108,502
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e RS ¥ R B AR

24 Derivative Financial Instruments 24 LSBT H
The Group
A 4
2008 2007
SRR\ CERELE
HK$’000 HK$'000
Wl T L wHT o
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2 B SN E 5 2
— held for trading —DEEE
— Assets — &= 371 2,597
— Liabilities — B & (4,413) (58)
Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability. 32 oy A HE B B 5 T B 7 BA
f& -
The net unrealised fair value gain or loss on forward foreign N EELER _EENFE+ H
exchange contracts as at 31 December 2007 and 2008 which =+ —H > NFAEh i A SNE S
are not qualified as hedges has been accounted for in cost of 2 RBB AN THEEFAMSERD
sales in the consolidated profit and loss account. G A 18 45 35 P Y B B A R
Details of the outstanding forward foreign contracts held by M_FENEFT_A=Z+—H A%
the Group as at 31 December 2008 are disclosed in note 33. B RE A R B R BANE S 4 B
These contracts expire through 2009. TEM EE33 TP 55 - S AN FE
JUAE A Jiz i o
25 Cash and Cash Equivalents 25 BleEkBEEEY
The Group The Company
AL AR
2008 2007 2008 2007
“REAE “EFLF e 29X —EELE
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T wHT T T
Bank deposits with original ~ Ji A 1 H £ =8 A
maturity of three B AT Z BAITAE K
months or less 35,969 54,935 - -
Cash at bank and in hand ~ $RAT 773K K B 4 41,139 19,589 234 180
77,108 74,524 234 180
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalents (cont’d)

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits is
ranging from 0.15% to 2.88% (2007: ranging from 0.63%
to 5.20%) these deposits have an average maturity of 49 days
(2007: 54 days).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents

e B R B AR

25 BEeRB&5EY (4)
IASRAT A B BRI 550152 2
2.88JE ASE (ZFEE L 0.63EE
5.2JEAREE) o S AE R ) H
549K (ZEELF 1 54K) -

A 45 T 1) B 4 e B 4 S 1R W) 0 MR T

are denominated in the following currencies: E VAT 5 & A B A
The Group
A H

2008 2007
ZRE)N\AE SRR LA
HK$’000 HK$ 000
wiT T BT oo
HKD e s 24,398 21,562
RMB N 25,539 23,286
EUR ik 7 1,291 10,763
USD ESPIn 25,462 17,223
Other currencies HAth & H 418 1,690
77,108 74,524

Trade and Other Payables

26 B 5h B 30 A JE A K

The Group The Company
AL AR

2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENAE ZERLE ZREN\AE —EELE
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T wHT T T T T

Trade and bills payable A& 5 B 3k K&
JE A 2R 44,259 62,857 - -

Accruals and other payables &+ % ] K JAth
JRE A5 2K 27,044 30,671 203 265

Advances received &P AT

from customers 7,643 11,294 - =
78,946 104,822 203 265

All of the above trade and other payables are expected to be

settled within one year.

LA b BT A B 5 B Al B AT T UK
A — R E AT
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A B ¥ R B R

26 Trade and Other Payables (cont’d) 26 © 5 K Hofib BE AT 3k (47)
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate B Gy R HoAth I A R M T (L BR L O
their fair values. TE{EAR A o

The aging analysis of trade and other payables (which include JE A 8 B B R S B A B B 1 R B 4

trade and bills payables) is as follows: Branr -
The Group
A H
2008 2007
ZRE)N\AE SEELF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
W T BT oo
Current I 4 1 30,300 36,607
One to three months overdue s B — R H 2= =@ H 11,857 22,052
Overdue more than three months 81 40 R R =1 A 2,102 4,198
Total trade and bills payables JEASH B 5 HR R K

JE A SR 45 AR 44,259 62,857
Accruals and other payables JREASH 22 FH Ko oA B A) 3k 27,044 30,671
Advances received from customers B 5 IE AT 7,643 11,294
78,946 104,822

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payables A A ) & 5 K FAth FE A R v A DA

are denominated in the following currencies: T &R A
The Group
A H

2008 2007
ZREN\AE SRR LA
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T BT oo
HKD e 5,593 4,063
RMB N 4,293 4,343
EUR ik 7 14,145 28,412
USD ESPIn 18,963 21,264
Other currencies HoAh &5 1,265 4,775
44259 62,857
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e B W R I AR

Provisions 27 P
Employee
Long service leave
payments entitlements Total
853 1) % Pt LM =2 B30 R
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T on biki i e T oo
At 1 January 2008 W _FEFINE
—H—H .8 1,319 _L677
Additional provisions B A1 A 817 1,296 2,113
Less: Amounts utilised W BB A - (1,101) (1,101)
Charged to consolidated SRS~ ErE Ll
profit and loss account 817 195 1,012
Less: Amounts settled W B S AT A (147) (167) (314)
Net effect on provisions 8% i 15 AH - §ZQ __________ 28 6 98
At 31 December 2008 N_RENET
H=1+—H 1,028 1,347 2,375
Share Capital 28 AR
Issued and
fully paid Ordinary Share
Ordinary shares of BB ¥.1082 Authorised Rk T shares premium Total
HKS$0.10 each 30 05t e iy Ko 31174 I8 e K
(Number of shares) HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
B0 1 H ik T i T ik T
At 1 January 2007 MEZZFLE—A—H 800,000,000 224,496,000 22,450 92,389 114,839
Employees share option g B B et 1
scheme — proceeds from —BAT R ik
shares issued = 800,000 80 320 400
At 31 December 2007 and - F & L4
at 31 December 2008 TZH=Z+—H
E_ZEN\E
+ZH=1+—H 800,000,000 225,296,000 22,530 92,709 115,239

Annual Report 2008 4E#t 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

»‘/"B ZI‘W%%i%E I}ﬁ n]‘:

28 Share Capital (cont’d)
A Share Option Scheme (“the Scheme”) was approved and

28

adopted by the shareholders at a special general meeting of

the Company on 11 July 2002 under which the Board may,

at its discretion, invite Eligible Persons to take up options to

subscribe for shares of the Company.

Details of options granted to directors and employees under the

Scheme were as follows:

Outstanding

options as at

A (#1)

ARFBKR = FE F LA+
L2 IR K A R A —

YL JE S0 A = 1 (

(&%t #])

E 3

EHRGAMER TS EM A LK
LRI A 2 ® e o

AR % B 1 A 2 I R

W RREZ FEB IR -
Outstanding
Exercised/ options as at

1 January lapsed/ 31 December
2008 cancelled 2008
RN Granted during the “ERNE Subscription
—A—H during the year +ZJ=+—H price
W ARAT 1 year  RAEWEE W AR AT B per share
Date of options granted 5 B F Y Z ik B HE AR BB fieBe ik B Z B HE )5t 2 A
HKS$
ik
18 September 2003 “ER=FEAATAH 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000 0.500
19 November 2004 “ETWEF—A A 3,700,000 - - 3,700,000 0.602
21 November 2005 “ERFHET-AZE—H 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 0.700
02 January 2008 “EENE-AZH - 1,600,000 - 1,600,000 1.490
11,100,000 1,600,000 - 12,700,000
Outstanding Outstanding
options as at Exercised/ options as at
1 January lapsed/ 31 December
2007 cancelled 2007
“EERLE Granted during the “EFERLE Subscription
—f—H during the year TZH=F—H price
i A AT year  RAEWATHE/ i AT per share
Date of options granted A5 4 ACHE P Z S e T 4F A fERE /Gt 8 I B MR
HK$
ik
18 September 2003 “EF=EAATAH 3,700,000 - (800,000) 2,900,000 0.500
19 November 2004 ~ —“FFME+—A+ILH 3,700,000 - - 3,700,000 0.602
21 November 2005 “ZFEHEF+—AZ+—H 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 0.700
11,900,000 = (800,000) 11,100,000
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28 Share Capital (cont’d)

Based on the binomial option pricing model, the fair value
of the Options granted on 18 September 2003, 19 November
2004, 21 November 2005 and 2 January 2008 are HK$0.248,
HK$0.141, HK$0.180 and HK$0.680 respectively. However,
since the valuation relies on subjective assumptions such as
the estimated volatility of the Share price, the binomial option
pricing model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure
of the fair value of the Options. The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of continuously compounded share returns
is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last

three years.

The weighted average assumptions used are as follows:

A P BS ¥ R B R

28 JBeAR (%)

Fie — T A I v B AT R
FEZAENLATH/NH - B F
+—H+ B -ZFFHE+—H
Tt —HUAREFENFE—H_H
P B I HE 2 N (8 2 il 2 s
0.2487C ~ ¥ ¥50.1417C ~ ¥ ¥0.1807C
I s #:0.6807T o HH A 5% i T HE 2 fE
2 5 A R AR R i FE
JEARE % s+ R A — T e B P o
A O I AT FE (1) J AR RE A P AE -
F5 MG G R ME ) iy A R 22 T Rt
(1% D0 B s B > SR ARR AR L =R AR
8 R F Rt o B sHE Y o

ik SRV 8 U

Options granted on

Vi JB¢ i 352 ¢ H 390
2 January 21 November 19 November 18 September
2008 2005 2004 2003
“REN\E “RRAE 2 QUL “REEE
—“H=H +—H=+—H  F—HThH H+AH
Risk free interest rate 3 e 1) 2 (%)

(in %) 2.7 4.4 2.8 3.8
Expected life (in years) FRHAE W (4F) 4.5 5.0 6.0 6.9
Volatility (in %) R (%) 65.4 51.2 49.2 77.5
Expected dividend per FEIE RS (i)

share (cents) 4.4 4.4 4.4 4.4

At the date before the options were granted, 17 September
2003, 18 November 2004, 20 November 2005 and 31
December 2007, the market value per share were HK$0.500,
HK$0.602, HK$0.700 and HK$1.490 respectively.

The Options granted on 18 September 2003 can be exercised
in two instalments, 50% at any time between 1 September
2005 and 30 August 2010 and 50% at any time between 1
September 2006 and 30 August 2010.

TERE R HERZ AT — H > Bl BT = 4F
JLA+EH s ZFZZNFE+—H+ A
H ZFZHFE+—Ht+HR=ZF
ZTLEHEF_H=Z1+—H> BHEK
T AE 43 Fll B % #50.5000C ~ ¥ %0.602
JG ~ #5 150.70070 2 #5 151,490 7T ©

N EFEZAESLA N H R 2 R
HE RT3 7 AT 1 > B A HE 2 50% 7]
CEERENLAHE _F-FF
ANA =+ B I BEAT6E > 88 T 250%
Al ZFERNFENLHA-HBE_F—
TAENH =+ B I 478
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28 Share Capital (cont’d) 28 JBeA (%)

The Options granted on 19 November 2004 can be exercised
in two instalments, 50% at any time between 1 November
2006 and 30 August 2010 and 50% at any time between 1
November 2007 and 30 August 2010.

The Options granted on 21 November 2005 can be exercised
in two instalments, 50% at any time between 1 November
2007 and 30 August 2010 and 50% at any time between 1
November 2008 and 30 August 2010.

The Options granted on 2 January 2008 can be exercised in
two instalments, 50% of which at any time between 2 January
2010 and 10 July 2012 and the remaining 50% at any time
between 2 January 2011 and 10 July 2012.

Employee share option benefits represent fair value at grant
date of share options issued under the Scheme that amortised
to the consolidated profit and loss account during the year
disregarding whether the options have been vested/exercised or

not.
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A ERRNFEF—H T ILERBZ
5 Je HE BT 3 T AT > T I HE 2 50%
A _-FENFE+—H—-HZE_F
—ZENA=Z+H LM %
Z50% Al —FEFLFE+—H—HE
—E-FFENH =1 H BT -

REFEEHFET—AZ T —HAREZ
W FREARE T 4 T A AT A > IR HE 2 50%
Al -FEFLE+—H—-HEZ-F
—ZE/NH =+ H IEAFATHE 2 F
250% Al —EENF+—H—HE
B -EENHA =+ B IR EATE

AT NAE—H T H R R
ME AT 43 W HAAT 1 > B A ME 2 509 7]
CE T —-H HE E— 4
L H -+ H IR AT 88 F 250%A]
HoFz—-—4F—-H_HE _F—_
- H B R AT
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29 Reserves 29 fii i
Employee
Available-for-sale share-based
investment compensation
reserve reserve Retained Contributed
Share premium Wil EZ 2 L BB 9t earnings surplus Total
The Group A% WA A N B REAA HHa W
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT T W T BT T
At 1 January 2007 R-EELE
—H—H 92,389 155 1,749 81,468 808 176,569
Profit attributable to P SR IRE A1 i 1
shareholders = - = 16,805 = 16,805
Employee share-based 1 B e =2 I s
compensation benefits it # 2t F - - 386 - - 386
Employee share option 18 B T LR 3
scheme: = = = = = =
Proceeds from issuance of i 3L A7
ordinary shares Bk 320 - - - - 320
Surplus on revaluation AR - 841 - - - 841
At 31 December 2007 RoFRLE
+#H =t—H 92,709 996 2,135 98,273 808 194,921
Representing: HEE:
2007 Proposed final dividend ~—FZELF#HHZ
KB E 9,913
Others HAth 88,360
Retained earnings as at R-FELE
31 December 2007 +=-HA=+—H
Z R E B 98,273
At 1 January 2008 e YN
—H—H 92,709 996 2,135 98,273 808 194,921
Profit attributable to P 3R IRE A1 3 1
shareholders = - = 21,913 = 21,913
Dividend relating to 2007 “EENERA
and paid in May 2008 R’z —F%+L
EERE - - - (9,913) - (9,913)
Employee share-based 1 B JE =2 B i R
compensation benefits # 2 & F - - 568 - = 568
Deficit on revaluation EiER - (372) = = = (372)
At 31 December 2008 RN
+=ZH=+—H 92,709 624 2,703 110,273 808 207,117
Representing: BB A
2008 Proposed final dividend ~ —FZ N FEE L
FERE 12,391
Others Hit 97,882
Retained earnings REZBNAE
as at 31 December 2008 +ZA=+—H
ZREHEA 110,273
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29 Reserves (cont’d) 29 il il (%)
Employee
Share-based
Share  compensation Retained  Contributed
premium reserve earnings surplus Total
e ELIB By
The Company A4 JBE Ay ik 3 19N B R B HH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000

T T T T T T T T

At 1 January 2007 i 22 5 o2
—H—H 92,389 - 1,959 75,067 169,415
Profit for the year 4 7R - - 9,475 - 9,475
Employee share option 1 5 I PR =t ) -
scheme:
Proceeds from issuance of i %% 0 4 B A 1
ordinary shares IS 320 - - - 320
At 31 December 2007 REFZLE
+ZA=+—H 92,709 - 11,434 75,067 179,210
Representing: B
2007 Proposed final CERRLEFRZ
dividend A e B 9,913
Others HoAs 1,521
Retained earnings as at B oL
31 December 2007 t+=HA=1+—H
AR &L 11,434
At 1 January 2008 N R\
—H—H 92,709 = 11,434 75,067 179,210
Profit for the year 7 A = = 12,600 = 12,600
Dividend relating to 2007 # =FZ /4ETH Ik
and paid in May 2008 M2 ZZRLE
;-3 — - (9,913) — (9,913)
Employee Share-based 1 £ e f i e
compensation benefits wt & 2 48 - 2,703 - - 2,703
At 31 December 2008 BB FNE
+=A=+—H 92,709 2,703 14,121 75,067 184,600
Representing: B
2008 Proposed final “ETNEFEREEL
dividend R E 12,391
Others HoAtn 1,730
Retained earnings as at REBRN\E
31 December 2008 +=ZHA=+—H
Z B EA 14,121
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reserves (cont’d)

The distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2008, under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted
to HK$89,188,000 (2007: HK$86,501,000).

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the excess of
the nominal value of the shares of Arnhold (B.V.I.) Limited
and the nominal value of the deferred shares of Arnhold
Investments Limited acquired over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefore pursuant to the

Group’s re-organisation in December 1993.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
undistributed excess of the net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefore pursuant to the Group’s
reorganisation in December 1993. Under the Companies Act

1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus is distributable.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax has been calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%).

29

30

A P BS ¥ R B R

fili f (4)

AN ERENETH=ZF—HR
ANEKEE RE LN —F N AE
R Ay E fifh G 3 2 40 7 589,188,000
JC (. EELAF 4% 186,501,000

JG) e

A 45 [ 2 B B B 2 48 A Arnhold
(B.V.I.) Limited.Z i% 53 i {F B % F1| #%
B AR B 2 0 SE B A7 T (R B A A
ARRBE—-NLIL=ZFE+ A AREE
AW AT 2 A (V5 38k bk i
1y T {E 2 B 8% -

/NP ¥ e St YN R ]
J& o ml 2 R R R AR
—NN=F+"AEHEEAETZ
Fedy (LASZHR%55 WY B 8 7 2 B
{6) T {E 2 R 70 IR 21 8 o iR 98 1 580
—NUWN—FA R MBS T2
R o

AR JE BT 15 Bl TE B A Bk el IRy
W EBEREICS% (FEE LA
17.5% ) 1E 2= B 45
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30 Deferred Income Tax (cont’d)

The movement of the deferred income tax assets/(liabilities)

30 JEHE BT 15 8L ()

4 (R AE A BE S (6K 2

during the year is as follows: B -
Accelerated
depreciation
allowance
Tax loss ok Py 45 Total
B S BL B Mm
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
bk A T T oo
At 1 January 2007 wEELAE
—H—H = (425) (425)
Deferred income tax credited I SiE BT 155
to the consolidated A AHEER
profit and loss account AT AR 1,000 211 1,211
At 31 December 2007 A2 D
+—H=+—H 1,000 (214) 786
Deferred income tax debited I 9L FIT 15 50
to the consolidated i ARER
profit and loss account NS (1,000) (12) (1,012)
At 31 December 2008 o RENAE
+=ZH=1+—H - (226) (226)
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30 Deferred Income Tax (cont’d) 30 MEAE PS8 (4H)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there EHIEENHATE SR ABIEE
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against 7 LI A BB ALK - HARIE PR
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes P B[] — A BB B > B AT A% 208 4iE BT
relate to the same fiscal authority. The amounts shown in the 1980 6 o B A B AR KB - HKEH Y &
consolidated balance sheet include the following: AR -
The Group
A SR M
2008 2007
TREBNAE SRR
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T e
Deferred income tax assets to be TE 1218 H 74 i [l 7Y

recovered within 12 months % A A TE - 1,000
Deferred income tax liabilities to be 1218 H 1%

settled after more than 12 months A% JIE B IH A A (226) (214)
Deferred income tax IEAERLIE (A1),

(liabilities)/assets — net B AR (226) 786
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry- O 465 T P 8 T 0 0 11 2 S T A5 B
forwards to the extent that the realization of the related JEE M B A A B 2 B Al 2 AR A AT e
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. A8 A 20 R R 1 R B B4 AR 40 o AR R
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of V55 17 4B 0 T 4 DL B A R R S A
HK$2,002,000 (2007: HK$4,881,000) in respect of losses #1415 4 5 52,002,000 00 ( —FF
amount HK$12,131,000 (2007: HK$27,890,000) that can be L4 - 49k 54,881,0007T ) fifE 58 K 4E
carried forward against future taxable income indefinitely. Jit 15 B4 B E 499 5 12,131,0007T (=

TE LA 3%27,890,0007C0) -
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31 4k TR (3B0N)

31 Financial Instruments by Category

Assets
at fair value

thro ugh

afite el FreTEb-
Loans and 5O A for-sale
receivables 1% L f it Yk LR g Total
Group A%H £k B HE Wk 1y ¥ B ¥ B
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T T
Assets as per consolidated  HL¥5 &% &5 % i
balance sheet BRI E R
31 December 2008 e 2 /¢ 2
+=ZH=+—H
Available-for-sale financial ] it 4 B
assets (Note 21) (Bt 5E21) - - 2,787 2,787
Derivative financial fiitE 4w TR
instruments (Note 24) (B 5E24) - 371 - 371
Trade and retention JRE Wit B 5 Bk Kt
receivables (Note 23) JE Wi R B 4
(B 5E23) 99,307 - - 99,307
Cash and cash equivalents RERBRESFEYD
(Note 25) (B 5E25) 77,108 - - 77,108
Total B 176,415 371 2,787 179,573
Assets as per consolidated WRIELGAEE
balance sheet BREERNEE
31 December 2007 “ERLE
+-H=+—H
Available-for-sale financial A T E
assets (Note 21) (Bt &E21) - - 3,159 3,159
Derivative financial fiitE & T H
instruments (Note 24) (it &E24) = 2,597 - 2,597
Trade and retention JRE Wi B 5 Bk Je
receivables (Note 23) JE Wi R B 4
(M 5E23) 108,405 - - 108,405
Receivables from related RPN A
parties (Note 23) (Bt 3E23) 97 - - 97
Cash and cash equivalents Ha kB e EY
(Note 25) (B &E25) 74,524 — - 74,524
Total A 183,026 2,597 3,159 188,782
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31 Financial Instruments by Category (cont’d)

Assets
at fair value
through

31 At TH (BN (&)

profic aud/loss Available-
Loans and T for-sale
receivables BRI it LR Total
Group AHH £k B M ek 1 %8 W 5 5 B
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T ki AT T
Liabilities as per B8 55 4 Y6
consolidated balance sheet BEFR B
31 December 2008 “EENF
+-H=+—H
Trade and bill payables JE A+ B 5 B 3k
(Note 26) JREA 4%
(M &E26) 44,259 - - 44,259
Derivative financial MEEMTHE
instruments (Note 24) (Bt 5E24) - 4,413 - 4,413
Total ok 44,259 4,413 - 48,672
Liabilities as per consolidated #4545 & & &
balance sheet BERN AR
31 December 2007 “EERLE
+ZH=+—H
Trade and bill payables JE A B 5 Rk Je
(Note 26) JE£S} 2R 4%
(B &E26) 62,857 - - 62,857
Derivative financial MEEMTHE
instruments (Note 24) (Bt 5E24) - 58 - 58
Total B 62,857 58 - 62,915
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31 Financial Instruments by Category (cont’d) 31 &R T H (3B (&)
Assets
at fair value
through
profit and loss Available-
Loans and WA T for-sale
receivables MBI W fiE i £ Total
Company A Bk B HE ek 1 % it 1o 5 ¥ ik
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
T oo T oo T T T T
Assets as per balance sheet WEEEAMREN
¥
31 December 2008 —EENE
+=H=+—H
Amount due from A &g 2 7] R 3Kk
a subsidiary (Note 19) (KEE19) 13,000 - - 13,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERBRESFED
(Note 25) (Bt 3E25) 234 - - 234
Total ok 13,234 - - 13,234
Assets as per balance sheet WIEEEAMERN
BE
31 December 2007 —EFLE
+-_H=+—H
Amount due from B 8 /A W Rk
a subsidiary (Note 19) (B &E19) 10,000 S S 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents e kB E&%EEY
(Note 25) (Bt 3 25) 180 - - 180
Total M 10,180 - - 10,180
32 Contingent Liabilities 32 A AN
(a) At 31 December 2008, there were contingent liabilities in (@) MEFEENF+_H=+—H>
respect of the following: sAREBEWT -
The Group The Company
AR A2 v
2008 2007 2008 2007
RN R ZRENAE ZEELAE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T L BT T
Guarantees for credit R 2% Bt & 2 7
facilities granted by [ SR AT 2 {1t
a bank on behalf of BRI R
subsidiaries - = 279,000 279,000
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32 sAA (8)
(b) 5 T B 2> =) G i) $RAT R 8 18]

32 Contingent Liabilities (cont’d)

(b) Certain subsidiaries have given undertakings to banks

that they will perform certain contractual financial
obligations to third parties. In return, the banks have
provided performance bonds and letters of guarantee
to third parties on behalf of these subsidiaries. As at 31
December 2008, the amount of guarantees outstanding
was HK$4,458,000 (2007: HK$3,038,000).

33 Commitments

(a) Commitments under operating lease

The Group leases various retail outlets and offices under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases

have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases as follows:

BB ETUEEEZ &4
HAL - ZE BT MR A
Wi 2N W 1) 2 = 0 2 13t B A IR
W RAERE - —FF ) E+
A=1T—H #BREFEHLBE
4,458,0000C ( ~FEL4F L
#%3,038,0007C) °

33 BARTRIE
(a) BEAERE

¢ 5 AR R T S0 0 2 AL O
FELFF 22 2 A 2 o %
RS 2 4300 ~ REL G 2 I A 4
¥R o

HEENFET+ZA=+—H>
AR AR T G B A A 2
H 1% AT e AR AH 5 A A T

The Group
A4 B
2008 2007
SRR\ CERELE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
W T s i T oo
Land and buildings 4 #h e S
— Not later than one year — A — 4 I JiE i 4,460 2,702
— Later than one year and not I P
later than five years 55 HUAF & T 3,042 3,973
7,502 6,675

The Company leases land and buildings under various
agreements which terminate between 2009 to 2011. The

agreements do not include an extension option.

A s w) AR AR AS [R] 1wk A B
BB M BT K &
——AEM &L ZE R EA
JE AR
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33 Commitments (cont’d) 33 BARRYE (HH)
(a) Commitments under operating lease (cont’d) (a) BRA AN (H)

At 31 December 2008, the Group had future aggregate N_FENE+_A=+—H>
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable operating AEBRBEA MR ERL 2

leases as follows: H 75 I i foe I FH 6 AR AR G R -

The Group
4

2008 2007

“RBNLE “ERRLE

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT s T T

Land and buildings &
— Not later than one year — A — 4 N JE T - 521
— Later than one year and not — R _E
later than five years 55 A T - -
- 521
(b) Forward exchange contracts (b) 3839 b 45 £

At 31 December 2008, the Group had outstanding W ZEFEENE++ZH =+ —
forward exchange contracts to buy EUR4,562,000 H o> A 45 [ 55 A T 4% K 7] BE 32
(2007: EUR5,713,000) at various rates totaling % AN 4,562,000 0 ( ~FZE L
approximately HK$53,405,000 (2007: HK$63,323,000); £ 15,713,000 7T ) HY 1 K 2
to buy JPY11,024,000 (2007: JPY109,971,000) at Wi W ANEE A A BB A
various rates totaling approximately HK$911,000 53,405,0007C ( —~FE L4 4
(2007: HK$7,415,000); to buy GBP165,000 (2007: s 163,323,0007C0) 5 % A [ BE
GBP224,000) at various rates totaling approximately FMEA11,024,000H o6 (= F
HK$2,229,000 (2007: HK$3,497,000); and to buy Z £ 4 :109,971,000H JT) HY
US$1,376,000 (2007: US$6,593,000) at various I oA 21 9] 7 193 O BE 5 A0 BB A
rates totaling approximately HK$10,660,000 (2007: #¥911,00000 (—FEFE L4
HK$51,143,000). )W %7,415,00000) ;¥R [

BE R I A 165,000 8% ( ~FE
£ 4 1 224,000 £) 1Y ¥ & E
1 ) A0 BB A A ARRE A R
2,229,0007C ( “EE-LFE 4
& ¥3.497,00070) 5 K 4% A A
FE % [ A 1,376,0005 6 (%
F £ 4 16,593,000 50) B A
) 1 53 A S TE & 40 R B A W
10,660,0007C ( ~E & L4 : 4
#51,143,0007C) ©
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34 Related Party Transactions 34

The directors of the Company regard the Michael Green
Family Trust, which owns 73.72% in the Company’s shares, to

be the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

Significant related party transactions, which were carried out in

the normal course of the Group’s business, are as follows:

A P BS ¥ R B R

RAREANLZRY

KA REBR LA ARNFT3.72%
CLE TR Z K« B KRG 7C 5
B APERIN -

AR i 51 5 A 45 1 B A Bl 28 N £ A
HWEBEHETZERLZ S

2008 2007
“RENE ZRELAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Sales of goods and services e il BRI 5 B A
Administration fee received from the e Wt 7 2 A B 2
associates (note a) TTHEH (K@) - 1,261
Gross rental income received from the 1) Bk /885 2 ) W B 2 M AR
associate A - 107
Sales of goods to related party (note b) [ B 2 A\ 4= &5 & 7 i
(BfFEE (b)) - 9,526
Purchases of goods and services i L i L IR
Professional fees paid to related party SO TR L E
(note b) 2 (B EE(b)) 43 179
Key management compensation FHEEMARMNE
Salaries and other emoluments i S H Ath B <2 5,477 5,221
Discretionary bonus M 1% AL AL 100 282
Year end bonus AL 497 427
Retirement Schemes contributions AR AR AL 3k 489 411
Employee share-based compensation fE 5 18 == s i w5t
benefits Z A& A 555 351
Year-ended balance arising from 88 Z AR AR
sales of goods
Receivable from related party JRE i A 7 N R K - 97
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34 Related Party Transactions (cont’d)
(a) A subsidiary of the Group provided management services
to the associates for which it charged an administration fee

at a fixed monthly amount.

(b) In addition to transactions with related companies as
disclosed above, professional fees of HK$43,000 (2007:
HK$179,000) were paid to a firm in which a non-
executive director is a partner. In addition, sales of
construction materials of HK$9,526,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2007 were made to a listed group
of companies in which an independent non-executive
director of the Company was also a director of the listed
group. Subsequent to the resignation of the independent
non-executive director from that listed group in December
2007, transactions in 2008 were no longer related. The
independent non-executive director resigned as the
Company’s independent non-executive director on 20
January 2009.

It is the intention of the directors of the Company that the
Group will continue its business relationships with related
parties under similar bases as adopted in previous years. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions with
the related companies were carried out in the ordinary course

of business on normal commercial terms.
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(a)

(b)

4 BABIEA L2 (8)

A B 2 R B o ] e A B
T H G A ] A A CRE E
ZATEE R -

B bl B BRE S R 2 38 5 4
AL 0] — F A E— & AT

EREAABANZ AR HES
FH B &9 6 ¥643,0000C (. FE L
4 s H179,00000) 5 LAk
AEBFPERE - FTLE+
A=+—H1E#HRKm—LH
7 ) A [ 6 6 R SR M R A S B
9,526,0007C » A2\ w] — 24 M8 57 HF
ATEREI S LT ER L #E
H-ZABUEATERCIN

ERLAETZHREZ ETHEE
ZEHE MR EENFRNZK
%Tﬁ%ﬁ%LAii%a%%
B ERATERC R ZFF I
—H= +H%E$QEZ%J#
HiTESE-

A\ E) A S AR 4 5 4 DA AR B
PR 2 MRS L 48 A BLA B N £
MR EBRFR - ANREERSHELE
AN RETZRSTIRHE
FEH AR o — B E R OELT -



(I) Five-year Financial Summary

Other Financial Information

A A 55 E R

() A% W 4
(restated)
(FE5)
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
ZEENE ZEERE EEARE ZEFFLE ZEERNE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

WHETE  WWTE  WWTT  wWTn e

Results e
Turnover EEHE 321,156 292,438 297,550 387,904 418,221
Operating profit A8 i ) 485 1,948 4,286 18,267 24,085
Finance costs W% A (54) (23) (196) (146) (93)
Share of loss of associates JE A B 75 | s 12 (1,065) = (1,767) (1,101) -
Profit/(loss) before W BT 1550 il 34 1)

income tax (fE18) (634) 1,925 2,323 17,020 23,992
Income tax expenses 15 i (226) (301) (182) (215) (2,079)
Profit/(loss) attributable I SR JE Al s

to shareholders (E18) (860) 1,624 2,141 16,805 21,913
Proposed dividend e 11 ds) 9,878 - - 9,913 12,391
Assets and liabilities BEKkAE
Total assets REE 278,993 268,216 267,889 324,514 315,607
Total liabilities HATE (86,501)  (72,476)  (68,870)  (107,063)  (85,960)
Sharcholders’ funds i R & 4 192,492 195,740 199,019 217,451 229,647
Total assets as at 31 December 2004 have been restated as a ERMFBEFMASEH 2 (FB
result of the prior year adjustment in respect of the adoption st 1798 [HH & | e B2
of Hong Kong Accounting Standards 17 “Leases” and [ BT AR — S8 EE A5 JF Hr 8 B I ie el
Interpretation 21 “Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non- MAE b4 B i B 4% i —FF U4
Depreciated Assets” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of ToA=ZtT—HRBEEC/EES -

Certified Public Accountants.
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(IT) Schedule of Principal Properties I FEPE -BER
Investment properties BEWE
Term of
Address Use lease
$b 1k ik L& 300 B
(a) Unit 02, 26/F, and car parking Office 47 years
space no. 31 on Basement 1, premises expiring
Super Ocean Finance Centre Building, in 2043
2067, Yan An Xi Road,
Honggiao Economic & Technology
Development Zone, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China
rpE N\ B G B Vg A A R Al B ) /N B RPY =A
HE % 7Y %2067 5% B 4 @l A 026102 K b Lt s
HhJEE 12 315 I HLAL
Leasehold land and buildings ME LRy E
Attributable
Gross Term of interest of
Address Use floor area lease the Group
3 ik & At 5 i A ALAIBIRE A SR AN B
(a) Unit B on 6/F Portion of Flat roof on Office 1,678 75 years 100%
1/F, and car parking spaces nos. 58, 59, premises square expiring
60, 61 and 62 on 3/F, Victoria Centre, meters in 2054
15 Watson Road, North Point, Hong Kong
A s b A FAE 1558 WA= 1,678 E _ZFH4E
HEZ A Do BELNL - LBEFR 0 F & I FHk BETRE
3#58 ~ 59 ~ 60 ~ 61 K 625% I HLAL
(b)  5/E Block A and car parking space Godown 2,548 58 years 100%
No. L11 on 1/E Kerry BCI Godown Centre, square expiring
3 Kin Chuen Street, Kwai Chung, meters in 2047
New Territories, Hong Kong
U 0 T e 2 35 V1 2,548 E_FMLE
mEPRERPLARSHE R EHA S BTN
VEL11SEIA H AL
() Yaoshan Village, Xiegang Town, Factory 30,000 50 years 100%
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, square expiring
The People’s Republic of China meters in 2055
HEE N RIEFB R A i 30,000 % FH A
SR5E T Al e BB L R RIS BT A4
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